
Resources Directorate
DavidDavid  WilcockWilcock
AssistantAssistant  DirectorDirector  (Legal,(Legal,  GovernanceGovernance  &&  
Workforce)Workforce)

Governance  & Committee Services
Floor 2, Number One Riverside, Smith 
Street,
Rochdale, OL16 1XU

Phone: 01706 647474
Website: www.rochdale.gov.uk 

To:  All Members of the Health, Schools 
and Care Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee

Enquiries to: Peter Thompson
e-mail: peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk 
Telephone: 01706 924715
Date: Monday, 13th February 2017

Dear Councillor,

Health, Schools and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee

You are requested to attend a meeting of the Health School and Care Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee to be held in the Hollingworth Rooms A&B on the 
first floor of the Council Offices at Number One Riverside, Smith Street, 
Rochdale, OL16 1XU on Tuesday, 21st February 2017, commencing at 
6.15pm.

The agenda and supporting papers for this meeting are attached. 

If you require advice on any agenda item involving a possible Declaration of 
Interest which could affect your right to speak and/or vote, please refer to the 
Code of Conduct or contact the Monitoring Officer or staff in the Governance and 
Committee Services Team at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

Yours Faithfully

David Wilcock
Assistant Director (Legal, Governance & Workforce)

Health, Schools and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee Membership:  
Councillor Sultan Ali
Councillor Cecile Biant
Councillor Surinder Biant
Councillor Gartside 
Councillor Hartley
Councillor O’Neill
Councillor Robinson
Councillor Rowbotham (Chair)
Councillor Smith
Councillor Sullivan (Vice Chair)
Councillor Zaman 

Public Document Pack

http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/
mailto:peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk


Rochdale Borough Council

HEALTH, SCHOOLS AND CARE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

Tuesday, 21st February 2017 at 6.15 pm

Hollingworth Rooms A&B, First Floor, Council Offices, Number One 
Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale

AGENDA

Apologies for Absence
1.  Declarations of Interest 4 - 6

Members must indicate at this stage any items on the agenda in 
which they must declare an interest.  Members must verbally give 
notice of their interest at the meeting and complete the form attached 
with this agenda.  

Members are also advised to take advice with regard to any matter 
where there is potential bias or predetermination in any business to 
be considered at the meeting and whether they should take part in 
decision making at the meeting.

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the Localism Act 
2011 and the Council's adopted Code of Conduct, they must declare 
the nature of any discloseable pecuniary interest; personal interest 
and/or prejudicial interest required of them and, in the case of any 
discloseable pecuniary interest or prejudicial interest, withdraw from 
the meeting during consideration of the item, unless permitted 
otherwise within the Code of Conduct.

2.  Minutes 7 - 11

To consider the minutes of the meeting of the Health, Schools and 
Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee held 15th December 2016.

3.  Health, Schools and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 
Work Programme 2016/17 

12 - 17

4.  Directorate Plans 2016-17 Quarter 3 Performance Update 18 - 39

5.  Rochdale BSF Project Co 1 - Hollingworth Academy & Project 
Co 2 - Wardle Academy and Falinge Park High Schools PFI - 
Annual Service Reports 2015-16 

40 - 86

6.  Rochdale Grouped Schools PFI - Annual Service Report 
2015/16 

87 - 137

7.  Oral Health Improvement Strategy Study Group 138 - 143

8.  Clinical Commissioning Group 144 - 149

Minutes of the Clinical Commissioning Group Board meeting held 16th 
December 2016.



9.  GMCA/AGMA Scrutiny Pool 150 - 156

To note the Minutes of the meeting held 13th January 2017



P
age 4

A
genda Item

 1



DECLARATION OF INTERESTS

IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT ADOPTED BY THE COUNCIL ON 25TH JULY 2012, MEMBERS ARE REQUIRED TO DECLARE DISCLOSABLE 
PECUNIARY INTERESTS, PERSONAL INTERESTS AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS (LISTED ON THEIR REGISTER OF INTERESTS).

MEMBERS SHOULD REFER TO THE CODE OF CONDUCT AND/OR THE MONITORING OFFICER AND/OR THEIR DECLARATION FOR FURTHER GUIDANCE

MEETING AND DATE

…………………………….

Agenda item

Indicate either
 Discloseable Pecuniary Interest OR
 Personal Interest OR
 Personal and Prejudicial interest

Nature of Interest

Signed…………………………………………………………………………………………        Please print name…………………………………………………………………………………………..

IF A MEMBER HAS A DISCLOSEABLE PECUNIARY INTEREST THAT HAS NOT BEEN INCLUDED ON THEIR REGISTER SUBMISSION, THEY ARE REQUIRED BY 
LAW TO UPDATE THEIR REGISTER ENTRY WITHIN 28 DAYS.  FAILURE TO PROVIDE PROPER NOTIFICATION IS A CRIMINAL OFFENCE.

THIS FORM, INCLUDING ‘NIL’ ENTRIES, MUST BE GIVEN TO THE GOVERNANCE AND COMMITTEE OFFICER NO LATER THAN AT THE END OF THE MEETING

P
age 5



Summary of discloseable pecuniary interests, personal interests and prejudicial interests.

Disclosable pecuniary interests
A ‘disclosable pecuniary interest’ is an interest of yourself, or of your partner if you are aware of your 
partner's interest, within the descriptions set out in the table below.  "Partner" means a spouse or civil 
partner, or a person with whom you are living as husband or wife, or a person with whom you are 
living as if you are civil partners.

Subject Description
Employment, office, 
trade, profession or 
vocation

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit 
or gain

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from the 
Council) made or provided within the 12 month period prior to notification 
of the interest in respect of any expenses incurred by you in carrying out 
duties as a member, or towards your election expenses.  

Contracts Any contract made between you or your partner (or a body in which you or 
your partner has a beneficial interest) and the Council - 
(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 
executed: and 
(b) which has not been fully discharged.

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the Rochdale 
Metropolitan Borough Council.

Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of the 
Borough for a month or longer.

Corporate Tenancies Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) - 
(a) the landlord is the Council: and
(b) the tenant is a body in which you or your partner has a beneficial 
interest.

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where -
(a) that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the 
area of the Borough; and
(b) either –
(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or
(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total 
nominal value of the shares of any one class in which you or your partner 
has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share 
capital of that class.

Personal Interests
You have a personal interest in any business of the authority where it relates to or is likely to affect - 
(a) any body of which you are in a position of general control or management and to which you are 

appointed or nominated by your authority;
(b)  any body -

(i) exercising functions of a public nature;
(ii) directed to charitable purposes; or
(iii) one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion or policy 

(including any political party or trade union), 
of which you are in a position of general control or management;
(c) the interests of any person from whom you have received a gift or hospitality with an estimated 

value of at least £25.

Prejudicial Interests
Where you have a personal interest you also have a prejudicial interest in that business where the 
interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the relevant facts would reasonably 
regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgement of the public interest and where 
that business -
(a) Affects your financial position or the financial position of a person or body described above; or
 (b) Relates to the determining of any approval, consent, licence, permission or registration in relation 

to you or any person or body described above.

MEMBERS ARE ADVISED TO REFER TO THE FULL DESCRIPTIONS CONTAINED IN THE
COUNCIL’S CODE OF CONDUCT ADOPTED ON 25TH JULY 2012.

Page 6



HEALTH, SCHOOLS AND CARE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
Thursday, 15th December 2016

PRESENT:  Councillor Rowbotham (in the Chair); Councillors Sultan Ali, Cecile 
Biant, Surinder Biant, Gartside, Hartley, Robinson, Smith, Sullivan and Zaman.

OFFICERS:  J. McGregor (Assistant Director – Children’s Services), J. Timson (Adult 
Care Services), S. Bruce, J. Entwistle, F. Orr, T. Philbin (Children’s Services) and 
P. Thompson (Resources Directorate). 

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:  J. Booth (Independent Chair of the Rochdale Borough 
Safeguarding Boards for Children and Adults). 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: Councillor O'Neill

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
43 There were no declarations of interests.

MINUTES
44 DECIDED – That the minutes of the meeting of the Health, Schools and 
Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee held, 16th November 2016, be approved 
as a correct record.

HEALTH, SCHOOLS AND CARE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - 
WORK PROGRAMME 2016/17
45 The Committee considered a report of the Assistant Director (Legal, 
Governance and Workforce) that presented the Committee’s Work Programme 
2016/17.

The Committee asked that consideration be giving to scheduling some of the issues 
below into the Committee’s Work Programme: 
 

a. Young People’s mental health
b. Suicide prevention 
c. Drugs and alcohol services (generally)
d. Provision of sexual health services (since the provision of service has been 

taken up by a new provider) 
e. Obesity levels especially in children
f. Diabetes – levels of support available, accessibility of that support 
g. Homelessness (including rough sleepers)
h. Greater Manchester Spatial Framework (insofar as it impacts on 

skills/educational opportunities (including an input from local colleges)
i. Coroner’s Service – Committee Members to visit the new Coroner on-site
j. Report on the Coroner’s Service especially insofar as it deals with 

cultural/religious sensitivities around deaths in the Islamic faith
k. Report on bereavement services (or maybe a one-off session)
l. Visit to Pennine Care Foundation Trust facilities
m. Foster caring in the Borough’s Muslim community   

DECIDED – That (1) the report be noted;

Page 7

Agenda Item 2



(2) the Clerk to the Committee be requested to meet with the Chair and 
Vice Chair of the Committee to discuss the possibility of expediting some, if 
not all, of the issues detailed (at a – m) above.

HEYWOOD, MIDDLETON AND ROCHDALE NHS CLINICAL COMMISSIONING 
GROUP - UPDATE
46 DECIDED – That consideration of the Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale 
NHS Clinical Commissioning Group’s update report and presentation be 
deferred to a future meeting of the Committee.

ROCHDALE BOROUGH SAFEGUARDING ADULTS BOARD ANNUAL REPORT
47 The Chair of the Committee introduced Mrs. J. Booth the Independent 
Chair of the Rochdale Borough Safeguarding Adults Board (RBSAB) who presented 
the Board’s Annual report with J. Timson (Adult Care Service) that was intended to 
raise awareness of Safeguarding Adults issues.

Rochdale Borough Council has responsibility for the Safeguarding of Adults at Risk 
within the Borough. In Rochdale, the RBSAB oversees the strategic development 
and governance arrangements of Adult Safeguarding. The Board aims to ensure that 
the risk of abuse is minimised by preventative work and in cases where abuse has 
occurred or is occurring, structures within Rochdale enable individuals to access 
safety and protection within Rochdale community and services.

Under the Care Act 2014, the safeguarding duties apply to an adult who has needs 
for care and support (whether or not the local authority is meeting any of those 
needs) and is experiencing, or is at risk of, abuse or neglect and as a result of those 
care and support needs is unable to protect themselves from either the risk of, or the 
experience of abuse or neglect.

The report demonstrated how the Safeguarding Adults Board, a partnership of 
numerous organisations, including NHS Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale, Pennine 
Acute Hospitals Trust, Pennine Care Foundation Trust, Rochdale Boroughwide 
Housing, Greater Manchester Police, Age UK, Rochdale and District Mind has moved 
forward its agenda of work, to ensure that concerns identified about abuse of 
vulnerable adults are responded to effectively and efficiently. The annual report also 
sets out the priorities for the coming year, in the action plan for 2016/2017.

The Committee considered the report in detail commenting on the recorded 
instances of abuse. The Chair of the Safeguarding Board replied that whilst all 
instances of reported abuse should be investigated, the increased numbers of 
reported abuse was welcomed as it was seen as a clear sign that reports of abuse 
were being taken seriously and that the various reporting mechanisms for notifying 
instances of abuse were working. Other issues that were becoming increasingly 
more prevalent included radicalisation, female genital mutilation and illegal 
immigration with its various attendant problems such as ‘modern slavery’, ‘sham’ 
marriages and sexual exploitation.
 
DECIDED – That (1) the Rochdale Borough Safeguarding Adults Board’s 
Annual Report 2015/16 be noted and welcomed;

(2) the Chair of the Rochdale Borough Safeguarding Adults Board be 
requested to submit a further report to the Committee, updating Members on 
progress being made against targets set out in the Action Plan.

Page 8



ROCHDALE BOROUGH SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN BOARD ANNUAL 
REPORT
48 The Chair of the Committee introduced Mrs. J. Booth, the Independent 
Chair of the Rochdale Borough Safeguarding Children’s Board (RBSCB). Mrs. Booth 
and 
T. Philbin (Children’s Services) presented the RBSCB’s Annual Report 2015/16 that 
was intended to enable Members of the Committee to scrutinise the Annual Report 
and to raise awareness of Children’s Safeguarding issues.

The Annual Report informed readers about the needs of children, to identify how well 
placed services are to meet children’s needs and what is known about how well this 
is being done.  The Annual Report detailed actions taken to address challenges 
identified in the previous year’s report, the current work of the Board and also tried to 
anticipate future issues that may be of concern. The annual report also established 
the priorities for the coming year which were set out in the action plan for 2016/2017.

Members of the Committee considered the report in detail seeking clarification on a 
number of issues contained therein, including: confirmation of attendance 
percentages of partner agencies at Board meetings, the impact of recent legislation 
regarding the ‘radicalisation’ of children, assistance to Care Leavers and on-going 
work to counter child sexual exploitation including work to combat criminal gangs that 
use children to further their ends.

The Committee in welcoming the report asked if regular updates, on children’s 
safeguarding issues could be presented to the committee in future.
  
DECIDED – That (1) the Rochdale Borough Safeguarding Children Board’s 
Annual Report be noted and welcomed;

(2) the Chair of the Rochdale Borough Safeguarding Children Board be 
requested to submit a further report to the Committee, updating Members on 
progress being made against targets set out in the Action Plan.

SUNRISE TEAM ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016
49 The Committee scrutinised a report of the Director of Children’s Services 
which advised Members of the Sunrise Team’s work during 2015/16.  

The Sunrise Team was a multi-disciplinary team designed to tackle child sexual 
exploitation. Full details of the team composition and its function were detailed in the 
Sunrise Annual Report 2015/16; which was the second annual report to be produced 
and was attached to the report at Appendix 1. 

Contained within the submitted Annual Sunrise Team Report was the progress 
updates against the 2015/16 challenges and developments which included: Revision 
and securing ongoing funding/commissioning across the partnership; Revision of 
Operation Noric to ensure continued targeting of offenders and support for victims; 
the development and implementation of Project Phoenix; the continue to contribute to 
the national work regarding support for victims and prosecution of offenders; the 
development of educational resource for Year 7 pupils in the UK for social media; to 
develop outreach support for young people and staff; to develop a pro-active 
response to the placement of high risk Child Sexual Exploitation victims within the 
Rochdale Borough by other Local Authorities.

The main report highlights the operational work undertaken under the four key 
strands of the Child Sexual Exploitation Strategy, namely: Prevention, Protection, 

Page 9



Prosecution and Public Confidence.

The Committee discussed this report in some detail, seeking clarification and 
commenting on a number of issues including: the good performance thus far of the 
‘Prevent Strategy’; the 264 CSE risk assessments that were undertaken in respect of 
110 children noting that these were in the main repeat assessments; the terminology 
used in the report – the Chair asked if this could be reviewed especially in respect of 
the term ‘historic sexual abuse’ which was used on several occasions; the work that 
the Sunrise Team undertakes with offenders in terms of, where appropriate, 
monitoring them after their release from prison; work undertaken with victim’s families 
especially at the most stressful times, such as during court cases.

The Committee requested that future reports include more anecdotal case studies 
and include more detailed information about complex safeguarding issues. The 
Committee also requested that in 2017/18 the Sunrise Team’s Annual Report be 
submitted to the Committee at an earlier stage in the Municipal Year.
     
DECIDED – That (1) the report be noted and welcomed;

(2) the Committee request that the 2017/18 Sunrise Team’s 
Annual Report be submitted to the Committee at an earlier stage in the 
Municipal Year.

KEY STAGE 4 OUTCOMES 2016
50 The Committee scrutinised a report of the Director of Children’s Services 
which briefed Members on the outcomes for pupils at the end of Key Stage 4 in 
2015/16.

The Committee was informed that new accountability measures had been introduced 
for Key Stage 4. The prior key indicator of 5A*-C including English and Mathematics 
had been replaced by Attainment 8,  the average points scored in a pupils’ best eight 
GCSEs and Progress Eight which measured the progress pupils made between the 
end of key stage 2 (age 11)  to the end key stage 4 (age 16.) For 2016, the North 
West region has produced data against the previous indicator of 5A*-C including 
English and Mathematics. 52.5% pupils attained 5A*-C including English and 
Mathematics in the Borough compared with the national average of 52.8%. This 
represents an increase of 4.1% in comparison with the previous year. The attainment 
and progress of pupils in the high prior attainment band though remained an area of 
concern.

Steps were being taken by the Education Authority to re-establish Secondary link 
School Improvement officers which would enable closer monitoring and increased 
support and challenge to schools to secure improvement against key indicators. 
Through this work, the Local Authority gained an accurate view of school 
performance and predictions against the new accountability measures to better target 
support.  An investment of £15,000 would enable interim support from a Maths 
consultant. This support enabled intensive work to be completed within six of the 
Borough’s secondary schools to improve in the following areas: Subject leadership of 
mathematics, teaching and learning in mathematics and pitch and challenge of 
teaching in mathematics. The Committee was advised that the improved 
performance of the Borough’s pupils in English and Mathematics had been 
highlighted as a priority by the Leader of the Council.  

DECIDED – That the report be noted.

Page 10



PROPOSED CHANGES TO PRIMARY AND SECONDARY ADMISSION 
ARRANGEMENTS 2018/19
51 The Committee scrutinised a report of the Director of Children’s Services 
which outlined proposed changes to the school admission arrangements for primary 
and secondary schools, and in-year admissions for 2018/19; the co-ordination of 
primary and secondary school admissions and to seek approval to the schemes.

A Local Authority (LA) was required to consult on its admission arrangements, and to 
determine them by 28th February each year.  Rochdale Borough’s Local Authority is 
consulting all maintained schools in the Borough as well as neighbouring admission 
authorities on the proposed admission arrangements for community and voluntary 
controlled primary schools, secondary community schools and also on the proposed 
co-ordinated admission schemes for primary and secondary schools. In Year 
admissions are separated for 2018/19. Where a school converts to academy status 
before September 2018, the existing published admission criteria for such schools 
would continue to apply.

Members were advised that there were no known changes to the School Admissions 
Code being planned and any revisions to take account of previous changes in the 
Code had taken place in previous years. The proposed changes to the Admission 
Policies for Community and Voluntary Controlled Schools were: the introduction of 
separate Admission Policies for Primary Schools and Secondary Schools; and a 
refined criteria relating to the admission of children with strong church connections 
for Voluntary Controlled Primary Schools

The Local Authority was proposing to introduce a new, separate policy for In-Year 
Admissions and applications submitted outside the normal admissions round.  This is 
intended to meet the changes in demand particularly for multiple applications, such 
as a family group or children moving to the Rochdale area. There were Fair Access 
Protocols in place for both primary and secondary schools that were to remain 
unchanged.

DECIDED – That the report be noted.

JOINT HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FOR PENNINE 
ACUTE HOSPITALS TRUST
52 DECIDED – That the minutes of the meeting of the Joint Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee for Pennine Acute Hospitals NHS Trust, held 13th 
September 2016, be noted.

GMCA/AGAMA SCRUTINY POOL
53 DECIDED – That the Minutes of the meeting of the GMCA/AGMA 
Scrutiny Pool held 11th November 2016 be noted.

Page 11



Subject: Work Programme 2016/17 Status:  Publication

Report to: Health, Schools and Care Overview 
and Scrutiny  Committee 

Date:  Tuesday, 21st February 2017
 

Report of: Assistant Director (Legal, Governance 
and Workforce)

Author Email:    
peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk    

Author: Peter Thompson 

Tel: 01706 924715

1 Purpose of Report

1.1 To present the draft of the Health, Schools and Care Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee Work Programme 2016/17 as a basis for ongoing development.

2 Recommendations

2.1       That the Committee note the attached Work Programme 2016/17

2.2       The Work Programme be further developed and submitted to meetings of the 
Committee throughout 2016/17.

Reason for recommendation

Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rule 7 requires Overview and Scrutiny Committees 
to set a work programme and to report it to the Council.

3 Background

3.1 The principal role of the Health, Schools and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
would bring together already developing linkages around the Health and Wellbeing 
Board such as integrated commissioning; joint interests such as safeguarding; the 
joint/partnership working with the Heywood, Middleton, Rochdale NHS Clinical 
Commissioning Group, and the existence of a common regulator (in the Care Quality 
Commission) across relevant Council services and those of other parties who might be 
expected to have an involvement in the Committee.

3.2 Areas of focus for the Committee include the development, delivery and scrutiny of 
partners or key contractors relevant to the remit of the Committee.

3.3 The appended work programme for the Committee is drawn up through consideration 
of the statutory roles of the Committee, including the ‘call-in’ or review of executive 
decisions made; budget and policy consultation; review of service delivery; and 
specific issues requested either by this Committee or its predecessors, with scheduling 
reflecting the anticipated consideration of business to deliver these functions.  The 
Committee has options for developing its own agenda and can request further 
business to come forward.  

Page 12

Agenda Item 3

mailto:peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk


 

Alternatives considered

None

4 Financial Implications

4.1 None

5  Legal Implications

5.1 The development of an Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme is a requirement of 
the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules contained within the Council’s 
Constitution.

6 Personnel Implications

6.1 None

7. Risk Assessment Implications 

7.1 There are no specific risk issues for members to consider arising from this report

8. Equalities Impacts

8.1 Workforce Equality Impacts Assessment

There are no workforce equality issues arising from this report.

8.2 Equality/Community Impact Assessments

There are no significant equality/community issues arising from this report.

There are no background papers to this report
 

Page 13



APPENDIX

HEALTH, SCHOOLS AND CARE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Work Programme 2016/2017 

1. The Work Programme for the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 2016/2017 has been 
compiled mindful of the key scrutiny functions that are set out in the Local Government 
Act 2000 and subsequent legislation and as set out in the Council’s Constitution.  In 
brief, these are to hold the executive to account and to maintain an oversight of the 
delivery of Council services.  This is undertaken principally through the following means:-
 

 Scrutiny of Executive Decisions through the ‘Call-in’ process;
 The consideration of Budget and Policy Framework proposals for consultative 

purposes;
 The consideration of a range of performance monitoring/management data;
 The specific consideration of individual service issues as may be specified by the 

Committee. 

2. The Committee’s Work Programme has been prepared on the basis of known items 
at this time.  Scheduling of some business remains to be determined and this is 
reflected in the Work Programme.  

3. The following table highlights issues where there is either an agreement or an 
anticipation that specific items may come forward.  Other issues will be brought 
forward as indicated above.

29th June 2016

Work Programme 2016/17 To consider the Committee’s Work 
Programme for 2016/2017

Call-in/Member items/other referrals
Directorate Plan Updates (4th Quarter 
2016/2017)
 Children’s Services
 Adult Care Services
 Public Health Service

Performance management and 
monitoring

Social Care Complaints – 4th Quarter 
2015/2016

Performance management and 
monitoring

Adult Care Market Oversight Report Performance management and 
monitoring

Oral Health update Final report of the Scrutiny Study 
Group

Local Provider of Services for people with 
Learning Disabilities

HMR – CCG consultation report

Review of the Care Act 2014
Joint Scrutiny Committees - minutes
GMCA/AGMA Scrutiny Pool Minutes

Page 14



4th August 2016

Work Programme 2016/2017 To note the Committee’s Work 
Programme for 2015/2016

Call-in/Member items/other referrals
NHS England pre-consultation on the 
proposed new clinical model for Learning 
Disabilities in the North West

Consultation on provider services

Adult Care - Market Oversight update report Performance management and 
monitoring

HealthWatch Rochdale – Annual Report
School Admissions and Allocation of Places 
2016

Scrutiny of proposals

Schools Final Outturns and Reportable 
Surplus 2015/16
Joint Scrutiny Committees - minutes
GMCA/AGMA Scrutiny Pool Minutes

14th September 2016

Work Programme 2016/2017 Update 
Call-in/Member items/other referrals  
PAHT – Update Scrutiny of partner’s performance
PCFT Update Scrutiny of partner’s performance
Need for Extra Reception Class Places 
2016-2019

Scrutiny of proposals

Need for Extra Year 7 Secondary School 
Places from September 2017 to 2026

Scrutiny of proposals

Social Care Complaints – 1st Quarter 
2016/2017

Performance management and 
monitoring

Children's Social Care Annual Complaints 
Report 2015/16

Performance management and 
monitoring

GMCA/AGMA Scrutiny Pool Minutes For information

16th November 2016

Work Programme 2016/2017 Update
Call-in/Member items/other referrals  
PCFT Update Health Scrutiny
HMR CCG Update Health Scrutiny
Borough Locality Plan Health Scrutiny
Directorate Plan Update (2nd Quarter 
2016/2017)
Children’s Services
Adult Care Services
Public Health Service

Performance monitoring and 
management

Social Care Complaints – 2nd Quarter 
2016/2017

Performance monitoring and 
management

GMCA/AGMA Scrutiny Pool Minutes

Page 15



15th December 2016 

Work Programme 2016/2017 Update
Call-in/Member items/other referrals  
CCG Update Scrutiny of partner’s performance
Rochdale Borough Safeguarding Adults 
Board – Annual Report 2015/2016

Performance monitoring and 
management

Rochdale Borough Safeguarding Children 
Board – Annual Report 2015/2016

Performance monitoring and 
management

Sunrise Team – Annual Report Performance monitoring and 
management

Performance Monitoring:
Inspired Spaces

Performance monitoring and 
management

Key Stage 4 Outcomes 2016 Performance monitoring and 
management

Proposed changes to Primary and 
Secondary Admission Arrangements 
2018/19

Performance monitoring and 
management

Joint Scrutiny Committees – minutes
GMCA/AGMA Scrutiny Pool Minutes

21st February 2017 

Work Programme 2016/17 Update
Call-in/Member items/other referrals
Directorate Plan Update (3rd Quarter 
2016/2017)
Children’s Services
Adult Care Services
Public Health Service

Performance management and 
monitoring

Rochdale BSF Project – Annual Report 
2015/16

Performance monitoring and 
management

Rochdale Grouped Schools PFI - Annual 
Service Report 2015/16

Performance monitoring and 
management

Oral Health Scrutiny Study Group Final report of scrutiny group
CCG Board Minutes Minutes – for information
Joint Scrutiny Committees - minutes Minutes – for information
GMCA/AGMA Scrutiny Pool Minutes Minutes – for information

30th March 2017 

Work Programme 2016/2017 Update
Call-in/Member items/other referrals  
PAHT - Update Scrutiny of provider
Directorate Plan Update (3rd Quarter 
2016/2017)
Children’s Services
Adult Care Services
Public Health Service

Performance management and 
monitoring

Performance Monitoring (3rd Quarter 
2016/2017):
Social Care Complaints

Performance management and 
monitoring

Page 16



Market Oversight Report Performance management and 
monitoring

NHS England – outcome of consultation on 
the proposed new clinical model for 
Learning Disabilities in the North West
Rochdale Borough Safeguarding Children 
Board – six month update
Rochdale Borough Safeguarding Adults – 
six month update
Joint Scrutiny Committees - minutes
GMCA/AGMA Scrutiny Pool Minutes

Other business to be scheduled

Provision of sexual health 
services 

An informal ‘round table’ session involving Members 
and Council Officers with the providers and 
commissioners of services.

Locality Plan The Committee will be consulted on significant policy 
proposals at the appropriate time.

Page 17



Subject: Directorate Plans 2016-17 Quarter 
3 Performance Update

Status:  Publication

Report to: Health, Schools and Care 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Cabinet Member: 

Date: Tuesday, 21 February 2017
 

Report of: 

Author Email:    
john.entwistle@rochdale.gov.uk 

Author: Mark Widdup

Tel: 01706 925622

1 Purpose of Report

1.1 To report progress at the end of Quarters 1 to 3 (1st April – 31st December 2016) 
towards achievement of the targets contained in the Adult Care Directorate Plan 2016-
17, Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2016-17 and Public Health Directorate Plan 
2016-17.   

2 Recommendations

2.1       Members are asked to review the information contained within the report and the 
appendices.

3 Background

3.1 The committee previously approved the Directorate Plans for 2016-17 for the Adult 
Care Directorate, Children’s Services Directorate and Public Health Directorate. In 
accordance with the Council’s performance management framework, progress towards 
the targets contained in directorate plans are to be reported to relevant Overview & 
Scrutiny Committees at the end of each quarter. 

3.2 The Quarter 3 progress reports for the Adult Care Directorate, Children’s Services 
Directorate and Public Health Directorate are attached at Appendices 1, 2 and 3. 
Actions within each appendix have been colour coded in accordance with the following 
criteria.

Red: Action not fully completed or not on track to be completed by the target date
 
Amber:   Action not fully completed or not on track to be completed by the target date     

due to circumstances outside of the directorate’s control 

Green: Action completed by the target date 

Page 18

Agenda Item 4



Purple: Action is not yet due for completion but is currently on track

The appendices include a commentary against actions that are showing Red, Amber 
or Purple.

4 Adult Care Directorate Plan 2016-17 Progress

4.1 Performance Overview 
Eleven of the actions included in the Directorate Plan 2016-17 are not yet due for 
completion but are currently on target. Of the remaining three actions, two are now 
complete with the other action not completed by the target date due to circumstances 
outside the Directorate’s control.  The chart below shows the overall performance of 
the Directorate in meeting its plan targets at the end of Quarter 3. 

4.2 The two completed (Green) actions relate to developing new integrated provision 
arrangements and the further developing practice assurance in line with the Care Act 
2014. The action not fully completed (Amber) relates to implementation of the shared 
case record which was due for completion by the end of November and is now 
planned to go live in January 2017.

5  Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2016-17 Progress 

5.1 Performance Overview 
Fourteen of the actions included in the Directorate Plan 2016-17 are not yet due for 
completion but are currently on target. Of the remaining four actions, one is now 
complete with the other three actions not yet completed by their target dates due to 
circumstances outside the Directorate’s control. The chart overleaf shows the overall 
performance of the Directorate in meeting its targets at the end of Quarter 3. 

Page 19



5.2 The completed action (Green) relates to learning from the Department of Education 
Innovations project to be utilised across Children’s Services to improve delivery of 
social work practice. 
The three actions not fully completed (Amber) relate to:

 Develop the Integrated Childrens Services Team and use the team to drive 
forward integration and utilisation of resources and continue to deliver the 
Demand Management Strategy – this was due for completion at the end of 
September and further work will be undertaken in Quarter 4 

 Implement the revised Multi-Agency Screening Service Model to ensure effective 
demand management and timely responses to families – this was due for 
completion at the end of October and will now to begin to operate in January 
2017

 Evaluate the Early Help and Schools and Children’s Social Care Quality 
Assurance and Performance Frameworks – this was due for completion at the 
end of October but now will be re-launched in March 2017.

6 Public Health & Wellbeing Directorate Plan 2016-17 Progress

6.1 Performance Overview 
Thirty six of the actions included in the Directorate Plan 2016-17 are not yet due for 
completion but are currently on target. Of the remaining four actions, three are now 
complete with the other one action (Red) not completed by the target date. The chart 
overleaf shows the overall performance of the Directorate in meeting its plan targets at 
the end of Quarter 3. 

Page 20



6.2 The three completed actions (Green) relate to:
 Establishment of robust health protection arrangements via contractual 

agreement, service spec and job descriptions
 Implement an action plan for improving oral health in the under fives
 Development of the Health and Wellbeing Board 

The one action which has not been completed by the target date (Red) relates to:
 Promotion of the Department of Health campaign to Reduce sugar 

consumption - this was due for completion by the end of September but the 
campaign will be further promoted in Quarter 4. 

7 Conclusions

7.1 Monitoring shows that progress is being made in delivering targets in the Directorate 
Plans for 2016-17 

7.2 A further update showing progress at year end will be brought to Committee in May 

8. Alternatives Considered  

8.1 Not applicable 

9. Financial Implications

9.1 None – priorities in Directorate Plans are delivered within approved budgets 

10. Legal Implications

10.1 None 

11. Personnel Implications

11.1 None 

Page 21



12. Corporate Priorities

12.1 All actions in Directorate Plans are linked to the Corporate Priority or Priorities to which 
they contribute.

13. Risk Assessment Implications 

13.1 None 

14. Equalities Impacts

14.1 Workforce Equality Impacts Assessment
There are no workforce equality issues arising from this report.

14.2    Equality/Community Impact Assessments
There are no equality/community issues arising from this report.

Background Papers
Document Place of Inspection

Adult Care Directorate Plan 2016-17

Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2016-17

Public Health and Wellbeing Directorate Plan 
2016-17
 

Number One Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale 
OL16 1XU

Page 22



Adult Social Care Services Directorate Plan 2016-17         

Action Plan Due Date Status

Directorate Plan New Page  1  Of  3 11 January 2017

APPENDIX 1

3.02 Implement Shared Case Record 30 November 2016 
Objectives: Enablers
The shared care record is now likely to go live in January. The delay has been caused by the slow uptake of GPs who need to sign up to the 
process. Adult Care has all the information governance agreements and training complete. The CCG are leading on collating GP agreement 

2.4 Strengthening the transition arrangement for young people with the 
most complex needs

31 January 2017 

Objectives: Operational Delivery 
There is a working group led by Children’s services in place which will focus on 0-25years transition service development. The transition policy 
and pathways for Adults are in place but the policy has not been signed off by childrens. From the Adult Care perspective, this is now out of our 
hands as we are awaiting another service’s actions

1.1 Establishing new Integrated Commissioning arrangements 31 March 2017 
Objectives: Strategic Commissioning
Joint Director of Integrated Commissioning has been appointed and is due to commence mid-March 2017. The integrated team structures will be 
finalised and implemented when in post

1.2 Increasing the range, capacity and quality of locally provided social 
care services

31 March 2017 

Objectives: Strategic Commissioning
The Market Position Statement has been produced and is currently under review with the service senior management team ahead of publication. 
Work has progressed and is still underway on development of a new approach to domiciliary care. An integrated dementia day support plan has 
been developed to inform specification for the dementia wellbeing hub at Springhill day centre. An integrated universal carers offer has been 
tendered and currently under evaluation.

1.3 Commissioning new services in line with the Locality Plan which 
reduce demand for Health and Social Care Services

31 March 2017 

Work continues in relation to the Intermediate Tier Service, Integrated Neighbourhood Teams, the new discharge to assess programme has been 
implemented. Additional home care services have been commissioned to support the hospital discharge service. There is evidence that the 
delayed discharges and non-elective admissions are reducing which would indicate the new pathways are having a positive impact. 

P
age 23



Adult Social Care Services Directorate Plan 2016-17         

Action Plan Due Date Status

Directorate Plan New Page  2  Of  3 11 January 2017

APPENDIX 1

1.4 Improving range and effectiveness of Mental Health Services 31 March 2017 
Objectives: Strategic Commissioning
Work is still underway on the mental health transformation project plan

1.5 Ensuring that social care providers are financially sustainable and 
provide quality services 

31 March 2017 

Objectives: Strategic Commissioning
The quality assurance programme is making expected progress and is on track at the end of quarter three. The open book accounting has 
contributed to the establishment of home care fees

2.2 Developing support planning to make better use of peoples own and 
community resources

31 March 2017 

Objectives: Operational Delivery 
The development of Staywell website has empowered service users and carers. There has been an increase in the number of people completing 
the online self-assessment form especially for carers. Cash budgets are on track to achieve the target by year end and the care navigators are 
improving the level of information and advice available in the community.

2.3 Increasing the effectiveness of enablement services and services 
that reduce the need for hospital level care

31 March 2017 

Objectives: Operational Delivery 
The Discharge to Assess pathway has been implemented from October. The initial evidence is this is working well and supporting people to 
discharge from hospital sooner. The percentage of people who are reabled or require less support following a period of reablement from STARS 
is increasing with a further 5% increase April- October.

2.6 Delivering services within budget 31 March 2017 
The service is currently projecting to be within budget for 16/17. All mental health and learning disabilities high cost placements have been 
reviewed. The progress has been slower than expected due to gaining some provider agreement to reduce placement costs. The complex case 
panel continues to meet every 2 weeks. 

P
age 24



Adult Social Care Services Directorate Plan 2016-17         

Action Plan Due Date Status

Directorate Plan New Page  3  Of  3 11 January 2017

APPENDIX 1

3.01 Improve workforce planning across both commissioning and 
operations

31 March 2017 

Objectives: Enablers
3 groups are in place for the service to support workforce development, operational excellence and skills which meet regularly. There is a training 
strategy in development which links with work on PDRs and the business planning cycle. Starters and leavers data is also monitored regularly for 
the service. Providers are encouraged to complete the National Minimum Dataset so inform workforce planning

3.03 Reduce client debt and improve experience of people re charging 
for services

31 March 2017 

Objectives: Enablers
The process changes and review have proven successful and assisted the service to reduce debt through closer monitoring.

2.1 Developing new integrated provision arrangements 30 September 2016  
Objectives: Operational Delivery

2.5 Further developing practice and practice assurance in line with the 
Care Act 2014

30 September 2016  

Objectives: Operational Delivery 

P
age 25



Childrens Services: Directorate Plan 2016-17 

Action Plan Due Date Status

Directorate Plan New. v4 Page  1  Of  6 17 January 2017

CS012 Develop the Integrated Childrens Services Team and use the 
team to drive forward integration and utilisation of resources across. 
Continue to deliver the Demand Management Strategy

30 September 2016 

Objectives: Priority 4: Jointly Commission and evaluate services based on identified need.
July 21st the inaugural meeting of the Locality Steering Group for Heywood and Middleton locality. Venues identified for potential co-location 
subject to funding being secured. Architects engaged.  Alternative proposals being considered for derby Street due to costings being too high. 
Resources to support Langley are being sought. The Locality Team Steering Group has monthly meetings scheduled to March 2017. 
Membership of the Steering Group has been expanded to reflect the widening brief and opportunity to progress the work through the locality plan. 
Meeting dates have been arranged for the year. The Children's Services Integrated Commissioning Team continues to meet and will focus 
activity around the implementation of the Family Services Model. Review of demand management strategy has taken place and will be presented 
to the RBSCB sub group in January 2017.

CS009 Implement the revised Multi-Agency Screening Service Model to 
ensure effective demand management and timely responses to families 

31 October 2016 

Objectives: Priority 3: Ensure a whole family approach from the Council and Partners to prevention by providing families with support at the earliest possible 
stage
A revised model for the wider children’s services model has been produced. It is currently being tested with a range of partners to ensure that risk 
is managed. The Family Services Model has now been agreed and adopted. Locality Teams in Heywood and Middleton will begin to operate in 
January and will develop alongside the implementation of the rest of the model. The Single Point of Access, subject to resourcing will go live in 
March 2017. The process linking the Single Point of Access and Locality Teams has been established.

CS015 Evaluate the Early Help and Schools and Children’s Social Care 
Quality Assurance and Performance Frameworks

31 October 2016 

Objectives: Priority 5 Ensure a consistent high quality of all social work practice for all children and families receiving a service from Children’s Social Care 
A review of the Performance and Quality frameworks has been undertaken. Meetings have taken place with both Assistant Directors to ensure 
that what was working well in the previous framework has been kept but that it is adapted to ensure that it is fit for purpose for the forthcoming 
year in light of priorities. Discussions at both Early Help & Schools and Children’s Social Care Senior Management Teams have been held. 
Practice Managers in Children’s Social Care and Performance /Quality leads have had several meetings to re-design the social work quality 
assurance framework which has included a visit to Doncaster in November 2016. The proposed revised framework will be presented to Senior 
Leadership Team in January 2017 for ratification. The revised framework will then be re-launched in March 2017.

APPENDIX 2

P
age 26



Childrens Services: Directorate Plan 2016-17 

Action Plan Due Date Status

Directorate Plan New. v4 Page  2  Of  6 17 January 2017

CS001 Review prioritisation of schools and increase targeted support 
and challenge particularly within identified Secondary settings to 
include schools at risk of a decline in pupil outcomes 

31 March 2017 

Objectives: Priority 1: Support and challenge schools to deliver sufficient places, improved achievement for children and young people and narrow the gap for 
the most vulnerable
1. REVIEW PRIORITISATION OF SCHOOLS. Analysis and evaluation of pupil outcomes 2016 for each setting within the borough completed. 
Priority schools at primary and secondary identified. Arrangements for School Improvement at Secondary reviewed in partnership with the 
Pioneers trust to tighten accountability and strengthen support where needed. 
2. DEVELOP AND IMPLEMENT A MATHS STRATEGY Impact of intervention from Maths Consultant evidenced in improvements in teaching 
and learning and subject leadership in priority settings. Some ongoing work set to continue into the Autumn term. Secondary mathematics 
strategy in development, in partnership with Hollingworth Academy as a teaching school. Delivery of training and CPD for mathematical 
reasoning through REAL trust. 
3. STRENGTHEN QA ARRANGEMENTS Continued input from Senior Performance and Achievement Officer alongside eternally brokered NLEs 
and ex HMI .Building on training delivered in the summer term, continued inspection training to take place in late Autumn and Spring terms for 
SIOs and Teaching and Learning Advisers. 
4. EMBED PRIMARY/SECONDARY PROGRESSION PROJECT This project initiated. Further follow-up needed from Teaching and Learning 
Adviser regarding use of assessment and pupil progress in year 7.
5. EMBED PUPIL PROGRESS MEETINGS FOR CARED FOR CHILDREN AT KEY STAGES 3 AND 4. Virtual School HT PEP meetings for 
years 7, 10 and 11 where need identified. This strategy reactive to pupil need and under performance. Further follow-up needed to implement 
this approach. 

CS002 Ensure an informed Rochdale approach to the implications of 
the Government’s White Paper ‘Educational Excellence Everywhere’ 
and the National Funding Formula.

31 March 2017 

Objectives: Priority 1: Support and challenge schools to deliver sufficient places, improved achievement for children and young people and narrow the gap for 
the most vulnerable
Paper for Informal Cabinet presented on 8th September 2016. Agreement from Informal Cabinet gained in relation to recommendations made. 
Session for primary HTs “The future direction of primary education in the borough” took place on 22nd September Working party of HTs 
identified, this will move forward in the Spring term. Engagement of ASD Early Help and Schools and Head of Schools in North West Strategic 
partnership meetings. Next steps identified to include the development of a working group of Head teachers to inform next steps. Continued work 
streams identified and planned for through operational and strategic academy meetings. Appointment of Academy conversion officer.

CS003 Work with post 16 education providers to deliver an effective 16-
18 offer with a particular focus on apprenticeships and progression into 
employment

31 March 2017 

P
age 27



Childrens Services: Directorate Plan 2016-17 

Action Plan Due Date Status

Directorate Plan New. v4 Page  3  Of  6 17 January 2017

Objectives: Priority 1: Support and challenge schools to deliver sufficient places, improved achievement for children and young people and narrow the gap for 
the most vulnerable
Rochdale Council is part of an established network of training providers who work collaboratively to deliver a strong offer on Apprenticeships and 
work based learning. Rochdale also has a unique application website that makes applying for local apprenticeships simple and effective. The 
borough experienced the highest growth in Apprenticeship starts in the whole of GM in 2014/15 and Rochdale is only one of 5 LAs in GM 
showing growth in Apprenticeship starts in 2015/16

CS004 Ensure school place planning delivery continues to increase 
number of school places in line with growing demand

31 March 2017 

Objectives: Priority 1: Support and challenge schools to deliver sufficient places, improved achievement for children and young people and narrow the gap for 
the most vulnerable
Primary School Places: - Consultation completed and pupil projections updated to take into account in year transfers and long term housing 
needs. Report to Cabinet recommending 5 schools for permanent expansion approved 31st October 2016.  Statutory proposals published and 
final determination to be made by Cabinet 6th March 2017.  Work to improve forecasting/modelling underway.
Secondary School Places:-  Consultation completed and pupil projections updated to take into account in year transfers and long term housing 
needs. Report to Cabinet recommending 3 schools for permanent expansion and up to 2 new secondary schools, approved 31st October 2016.  
Statutory proposals published and final determination to be made by Cabinet 6th March 2017.Work to improve forecasting/modelling underway

CS005 Lead and influence approach to complex safeguarding across 
GM

31 March 2017 

Objectives: Priority 2: Engage in and influence the devolution agenda for children young people and families
Complex Safeguarding Work stream across GM is chaired by Rochdale DCS, full engagement is therefore maintained. Consistent engagement 
with Education, Early Help and Children’s Social Care Work streams, working across GM to identify areas for shared services.

CS006 Locality Plan -  Deliver the Council’s key actions for year 1 in the 
Starting Well element of the  Locality Plan 

31 March 2017 

Objectives: Priority 2: Engage in and influence the devolution agenda for children young people and families 
Locality Plan Operational Group has been established and includes children’s service representation.  Programme overviews are being 

P
age 28



Childrens Services: Directorate Plan 2016-17 

Action Plan Due Date Status

Directorate Plan New. v4 Page  4  Of  6 17 January 2017

completed for all of the 6 work programmes – children’s projects have been included. DCS is Exec lead for programme 4 (specialist help) and AD 
children’s commissioning is programme lead for programme 4.  Children’s projects are identified in relevant Locality Plan programmes, and the 
required Programme Initiation Documents have been completed. Work ongoing to establish Project Management Office function to support 
delivery of the locality plan. The Locality Plan has been revised and a number of key transformational programmes have been identified. It is 
anticipated that The Family Services Model will be one of these. This will provide an opportunity to increase capacity to develop a proposal to 
implement the model over the next 5 years A list of priority projects for delivery this year is being finalised. It is probable that there will be a 
refocusing of the plan which may provide an opportunity for the children services model to be identified as a key transformational programme with 
accompanying resources and support.

CS007 Continue in partnership with key agencies in the Borough a 
significant focus on Early Help

31 March 2017 

Objectives: Priority 3: Ensure a whole family approach from the Council and Partners to prevention by providing families with support at the earliest possible 
stage.
Many of the actions are referenced in CS8 as part of the delivery of the multi-agency Early Help Strategy. In addition work has been undertaken 
with partners on the remodeling of children’s services to develop a more robust early help response and deflect from specialist / high cost 
services. In November 2016. Another early Help conference was delivered locally to around 120 professionals from a wide range of services 
including from Adult Services.  The conference launched the new Early Help Assessment and the updated Neglect Strategy and Graded care 
profile. Both are strength based and designed to be more accessible for families and easier to use for practitioners. The second early help 
conference took place in November with a focus on relationships, neglect and the new early help assessment. Once again there was excellent 
attendance from both Childrens and Adult Services. 

CS008  Deliver the Early Help Strategy 2016 – 2019 31 March 2017 
Objectives: Priority 3: Ensure a whole family approach from the Council and Partners to prevention by providing families with support at the earliest possible 
stage
All key actions for 1st quarter 2016 / 17 achieved. The Early Help steering group has produced an updated refresh of the Early Help strategy 
which was completed and signed off in April 2016.  The Steering Group has continued to meet 6 weekly and has addressed the priorities within 
the strategy e.g. communication and language needs. The Early Help Conference on November 28th was a huge success addressing key 
priorities in the strategy. Feedback was very positive. 
The quarter 2 scorecard identified very good progress against the majority of indicators. The steering group has also updated the strategies 
action plan which is monitored regularly at the monthly meetings.  The new strategy is on the local authority Policy Centre and has been 
distributed to partners.  It will also be promoted at the Early Help conference in the Autumn.  The Early Help Steering Group has monitored the 
scorecard for Qtr. 1 and received presentations on the key priority areas of child poverty and development of locality teams.  The Quarter 2 
scorecard demonstrates ongoing impact. From January 2017 the early help steering group and complex dependency steering group will merge to 
strengthen the multi-agency strategic lead on early help 

CS010 Practitioners working with children and young people are 
suitably trained and supported to identify the needs of children and 
young people and work holistically with partner agencies to embed a 
Think Family approach

31 March 2017 

P
age 29



Childrens Services: Directorate Plan 2016-17 

Action Plan Due Date Status

Directorate Plan New. v4 Page  5  Of  6 17 January 2017

Objectives: Priority 3: Ensure a whole family approach from the Council and Partners to prevention by providing families with support at the earliest possible 
stage.
The Children's Workforce Development Manager commenced in post in September 2017. One of the key areas of focus continues to be the 
Workforce Development/Culture Change needs of the Locality Plan. Specialist resource has been commissioned to assist in moving this forward 
- the first of a series of development sessions having taken place. A whole service children's services workforce team is being established from 
March 2017 to take forward the workforce strategy and development plan.

CS011 Children with SEND are supported at the earliest opportunity to 
ensure they have the right support in place to thrive

31 March 2017 

Objectives: Priority 3: Ensure a whole family approach from the Council and Partners to prevention by providing families with support at the earliest possible 
stage.
The SEND Data / Performance score card has been developed with specific data around SEND. The Score card data is subject to by monthly 
review at the Children with Disabilities Partnership Board. The SEND TASK group undertaking work with school head  teachers to agree a joint 
understanding of what SEN support means so that we can affectively identify all children at SEN support and put a relevant support and 
intervention in place . Specific work around SEN Support and exclusion in being progressed to ensure early intervention and lead to a in a 
reduction in lost educational day, this will support the early identification of need and ensure support is offered in a timely way.  
The rolling out of the Safeguarding Disability awareness training is aim to increase aware of need.
Note the work on the locality team and the review of the MASS to include clearer pathways for children with disabilities will support the early 
identification. Following the SEND Ofsted Inspection we have jointly developed a SEND action plan which pulls together all the current work 
streams around support and interventions all children with Additional Needs.  There is a key focus within the Action plan on those children 
deemed SEN Support and the early identification of child with SEN. 
The action plans includes developing a revised Multi Agency SEND Strategy as well as address the current barriers to early diagnosis.
Work on moving to a 0-25 project underway with an end of April 2017. This is intended support the work being undertaken around Locality Team 
and the MASS review to ensure Children with SEND have the right support in place to thrive.

CS013 Implement the CAMHS Transformation Plan and Measure the 
impact of the CAMHS Transformation Plan on Mental health of children 
and young people

31 March 2017 

Objectives: Priority 4: Jointly Commission and evaluate services based on identified need.
New services are now live including Kooth on-line counselling, new emotional health and well-being service and community eating disorder 
service (all CCG commissioned). There is requirement to refresh LTP during Autumn – conversations on going re the development of a GM wide 
CAMHS LTP. We will be refreshing all data and impact of developments as part of our local refresh. New emotional and mental health service # 
Thrive went live in September 2016. New community eating disorder service is also mobilised.

CS014 Design and implement an effective  local offer of integrated 
services for children with special educational needs and disability 

31 March 2017 

Objectives: Priority 4: Jointly Commission and evaluate services based on identified need.
Following consultation with parents and carers on the look, feel and accessibility of the Local Offer work is underway with the web site designer 

P
age 30



Childrens Services: Directorate Plan 2016-17 

Action Plan Due Date Status

Directorate Plan New. v4 Page  6  Of  6 17 January 2017

Open Objects to update the Local Offer. This includes a renaming it as parents were clear that “Local Offer” did not mean anything and was not 
something they would search for.  We have additional consultation in October 2016 around the redesign of the Local offer with a detail action 
plan - Note that we also working with Hopwood college to engage young people in this work  
We have identified a way we can site a Disability Register within the Local Offer which will seamlessly make links to provision for parents and 
carers. Budget for this has been agreed and the work commission to be undertaken in October/ November 2016 
We now have parents working directly on quality assurance of the Local Offer. 
Parent/Carer Engagement and Information Officer is now in post – who has a specific responsibility for the:- Local Offer ; as the development of 
the SEND Newsletters and Fact Sheets

CS017 Continued focus on the permanence and stability strategy 31 March 2017 
Objectives: Priority 5 Ensure a consistent high quality of all social work practice for all children and families receiving a service from Children’s Social Care 
Programme of strengthening s/w practice has been commissioned following co-design with practice managers. This is inclusive of strengthening 
care planning.  Edge of care model review and re- modelling as part of placement sufficiency approach has been ratified and is underway 
Adoption scorecard performance continues to improve and is overseen by the Corporate Parenting Board.  Cared 4 Children and Care leavers 
strategy and action plan has been agreed and is being monitored by the same.

CS018 Commission a Peer Challenge to assess progress since Ofsted 
Inspection

31 March 2017 

Objectives: Priority 5 Ensure a consistent high quality of all social work practice for all children and families receiving a service from Children’s Social Care 
An inspection of SEND has taken place in the Local Area jointly carried out by OFSTED and CQC during September 2016 the findings were 
published in November 2016. A Written Statement of action is required - this is in final draft. Representatives from the Senior Leadership Team 
attended a Regional Peer Challenge event in December 2016 where a request for a Peer Challenge in respect of SEND was made and 
accepted. Preparation for a possible Domestic Abuse thematic audit across the partnership is underway via dedicated resource which has been 
given from Children’s Services to assist with this across the Community Safety Partnership and Safeguarding Children Board.  

CS016 Learning from the Department for Education Innovations project 
to be utilised across CSC to improve  delivery of social work practice

31 December 2016 

Objectives: Priority 5 Ensure a consistent high quality of all social work practice for all children and families receiving a service from Children’s Social Care 

P
age 31



Public Health and Wellbeing Directorate Plan 2016-17 

Action Plan Due Date Status

Directorate Plan New. v4 Page  1  Of  8 12 January 2017

PH001d Promotion of the Department of health campaign to reduce 
sugar consumption

30 September 2016 

Objectives: Reducing Childhood Obesity 
Working with Communications Team on 2 campaigns - Give Up Loving Pop (GULP) and Liaise with Food Active (Partnership Work). 2 events 
planned - sugar awareness week 15-21 May. PHE sugar smart app 3/4 Feb in Rochdale Town Centre 

PH005b Further development of the family and adult obesity action plan 
as set out within the Lifestyles strategy.

31 March 20176 

Objectives: Reducing liver disease mortality
An Obesity Action Plan is in place and the first meeting of the delivery group has taken place.  Progress has been made in terms of oral health improvement and 
work to in planning to reduce mobile street traders within the vicinity of schools.

PH001a Optimisation of take-up of the national Child measurement 
programme (NCMP)

31 March 2017 

Objectives: Reducing Childhood Obesity 
20.12. 16 - Participation rates were 95.7% in Reception (up from 91.0%) and 96.3% in Year 6 (down from 98.0%). These are largely in line with 
the average participation rates over time. They are above the England averages of 95.6% in Reception and 94.0% in Year 6.

PH001b Implement a local action plan for increasing the uptake and 
duration of breastfeeding at 6-8 weeks.

31 March 2017 

Objectives: Reducing Childhood Obesity 
26.9.16 - Work continues to increase the number of venues which are breastfeeding welcome.  

PH002a Undertake a Health Equity Audit of hospital admissions in 
relation to accidents for adults and children and identify key 
interventions

31 March 2017 

Objectives: Reducing unplanned hospital admissions for accidents
work on children’s A&E attendances and hospital admissions has commenced - further work scheduled for Q3 

APPENDIX 5

P
age 32



Public Health and Wellbeing Directorate Plan 2016-17 

Action Plan Due Date Status

Directorate Plan New. v4 Page  2  Of  8 12 January 2017

PH002b Scoping of an action plan in relation to accident prevention for 
children

31 March 2017 

Objectives: Reducing unplanned hospital admissions for accidents
20.12.16 – A bid has been put forward to establish a home safety scheme (for families with children aged 0-4 years) in the borough in partnership 
with GM Fire and Rescue Service. 

PH002c Set out a strategy/action plan in relation to accident prevention 
in older people  (falls)

31 March 2017 

Objectives: Reducing unplanned hospital admissions for accidents
 joint working ideas with adult care are ongoing - scoping out ideas/plans in relation to accident prevention in older people focusing on falls in 
particular 

PH003a Support the commissioning of expert patient/self-care 
programmes for those diagnosed with cardiovascular disease

31 March 2017 

Objectives: Reducing cardiovascular mortality
Thee was no activity requested for Quarter 3 in relation to CCG commissioned services.  Public Health support was provided as requested to the 
CCG test bed programme 

PH003b Effective programme management of the  NHS Health Checks 
programme to prevent CVD

31 March 2017 

Objectives: Reducing cardiovascular mortality
programme ongoing and service referrals maintained as per overall project trajectory targets 

PH003c Effective commissioning of the national diabetes plan local 
programme to prevent diabetes

31 March 2017 

Objectives: Reducing cardiovascular mortality
NDPP project commenced 1st October 2016 - slow implementation period - project commissioner NHSE aware of issues with provider LWTC 
and action plan requested to be submitted to them by COP 11/1/17

P
age 33



Public Health and Wellbeing Directorate Plan 2016-17 

Action Plan Due Date Status

Directorate Plan New. v4 Page  3  Of  8 12 January 2017

PH004a Refresh of the tobacco control strategy 31 March 2017 
Objectives: Reducing cancer mortality 
The Tobacco Free Alliance has focused on developing a Tobacco Control Marketing Plan as part of the Tobacco Control Strategy. The Tobacco 
Free Alliance continues to meet quarterly and the refresh of the Tobacco Free Strategy is in progress. 

PH004b Review of access to screening (uptake) in Rochdale Council 31 March 2017 
Objectives: Reducing cancer mortality 
20.12.16 – Public Health are continuing to working with NHSE and the CCG to increase influenza vaccination uptake. The plan for the seasonal 
influenza vaccine is progressing. The total number of staff vaccinated during the staff vaccination sessions held at Number One Riverside was 
572. At week 48, HMR was in a good position in relation to % uptake of influenza vaccine for all risk groups compared to the same time last year. 
We are above the GM average in terms of uptake for over 65s, under 65s at risk, pregnant women and all age 3years. We are below the GM 
average in relation to vaccine uptake for age 2 years and age 4 years.

PH005a Implementation of the alcohol misuse strategy and plans 31 March 2017 
Objectives: Reducing liver disease mortality
The fall in the number and rate of Alcohol related Hospital admissions has continued –Q1 2016/17 data  just release shows that in Greater 
Manchester, only Bury had a lower rate per 100,000 (PHOI 2.18) than Rochdale.  Locally, there were 42 less actual admissions than the same 
period in 2015

PH005c Specific work stream established relating to increasing 
Physical activity in particular cycling and walking 

31 March 2017 

Objectives: Reducing liver disease mortality
Regular joint work with Link 4 Life has continued to take place.  A multi-agency workshop is scheduled for Quarter 4 which will result in a revised 
implementation plan for Borough sport and physical activity. Additional Public Health support was provided to the local Healthy Schools 
programme to roll out the Daily Mile programme in schools.  Feasibility work on cycling developments continues and will report back in Quarter 4 

PH006a New tobacco and stop smoking service commissioned as part 
of preventive work stream in Locality plan

31 March 2017 

Objectives: Reducing respiratory disease mortality
The Community and Family Prevention Service has been procured, the contract awarded and the revised service will commence in April 2017.  
The Borough Tobacco Plan has been revised and is being implemented to target NHS settings, pregnant women, people with mental health 
problems, young people and people with/at risk of long term conditions

P
age 34



Public Health and Wellbeing Directorate Plan 2016-17 

Action Plan Due Date Status

Directorate Plan New. v4 Page  4  Of  8 12 January 2017

PH006b Support to ensure stop smoking activities for pregnant women 
embedded including within new maternity service contract

31 March 2017 

Objectives: Support to ensure stop smoking activities for pregnant women embedded including within new maternity service contract
20.12.16 - The number of referrals from midwifery service to the healthy lifestyle service has increased slightly 917 but remains far short of 
expected number, as in Q2 there were 127 pregnant smokers.  In terms of quality, the quit rate has improved dramatically and the “lost to follow 
up” of pregnant smokers has also improved. The 4 week co validation along with the referrals needs continued focus.

PH007a Rapid review of the implementation of the five ways to 
wellbeing programme and new action plan implemented

31 March 2017 

Objectives: Improving mental health 
Five Ways to Wellbeing has been embedded in the Community and Family Prevention Service and within the Locality Plan prevention and 
mental health work.  A review is scheduled for Quarter 4 

PH007b Supporting the commissioning of mental health services in 
Rochdale in particular IAPT

31 March 2017 

Objectives: Improving mental health 
Support was provided to CAHMS transformation plan.  No support was requested by the CCG in relation to commissioning of IAPT.  The main 
work of the team was led at a GM level by the DPH in relation to Suicide Prevention and Mental Health programmes 

PH007c Scoping of the impact of social isolation in Rochdale and make 
recommendations for further actions

31 March 2017 

Objectives: Improving Mental Health 
Staywell Frailty Service tender successfully procured and in implementation phase  

PH007d Lead (on behalf of Rochdale and Greater Manchester) the 
implementation of the GM Suicide Action Plan

31 March 2017 

Objectives: Improving mental health
The DPH led the GM suicide prevention plan including a successful GM wide conference in Q3

P
age 35



Public Health and Wellbeing Directorate Plan 2016-17 

Action Plan Due Date Status

Directorate Plan New. v4 Page  5  Of  8 12 January 2017

PH008a Implementation of the GM work and health programme at local 
level

31 March 2017 

Objectives: Reducing health related worklessness
This work was deferred to Quarter 4 due to restructure of Public Health team and a lead will be identified in Quarter 4 

PH008b Increasing access to volunteering 31 March 2017 
Objectives: Reducing health related worklessness
The Community Prevention Service has been procured and the provider will deliver elements of supported volunteering

PH009a Review of local approach to ageing well and development of 
options for commissioning

31 March 2017 

Objectives: Improving health outcomes in vulnerable groups
Work has been undertaken to support the commissioning of work on older people and remains ongoing 

PH009b Scoping for a review of affordable warmth in Rochdale 31 March 2017 
Objectives: Improving health outcomes in vulnerable groups
Work streams to be identified into next quarter AF to scope out relevant work and advise as appropriate

PH009c Review of physical health indicators for those with a Serious 
mental health issue in Rochdale and proposed actions

31 March 2017 

Objectives: Improving health outcomes in vulnerable groups
This is scheduled for Quarter 4 

PH010b Ensure robust public protection arrangements in place 
covering all aspects of public protection, immunisation and screening 
assurance

31 March 2017 

Objectives: Protecting health and reducing harm
Assistance with our assurance role and local support to the NHS England commissioned immunisation and screening programmes has been 
commissioned within our Infection Control and Health protection service. Current performance was reviewed in Q3 and actions agreed. Joint 
review also commenced with the CCG Cancer leads in relation to screening rates.

P
age 36



Public Health and Wellbeing Directorate Plan 2016-17 

Action Plan Due Date Status

Directorate Plan New. v4 Page  6  Of  8 12 January 2017

PH010c Ensure robust sexual health services commissioned and 
monitored (lead commissioner for tri borough service)

31 March 2017 

Objectives: Protecting health and reducing harm
Integrated Sexual Health service completed first year of contract.  Web based hub offer implemented as per specification

PH012 To support the development and implementation of the Rochdale 
Locality plan through leadership of the prevention work stream (one of 
three key work streams). This will be achieved by supporting the 
leadership of the Integrated commissioning arrangements in Rochdale. 

31 March 2017 

Objectives: Rochdale Locality plan
Leadership of prevention workstream continues to contribute, develop and implement the Rochdale Locality Plan

PH014 Link4Life Client Leadership 31 March 2017 
Objectives: L4L client leadership
Work continued to fulfil the client role for RBC for the Link4Life Partnership. Work has included financial strategy, performance monitoring, joint 
work on key strategic plans for Link4Life led areas.

PH015 Establish a robust programme management approach to savings 
and budget management

31 March 2017 

Objectives: Public Health grant management and savings programme
Budgets reviewed and savings identified and approved by Cabinet.  Robust Programme Management approach in place 

PH016 Lead the development of a behaviour change programme on 
behalf of Rochdale Locality Plan including health related behaviour 
change and incorporating demand reduction across services

31 March 2017 

Objectives: Behaviour change
Draft specification produced and waiting approval.  Procurement will commence in Quarter 4 

PH018 Rochdale PH senior team will lead on agreed programmes of 
work at GM level on behalf of all ten boroughs as part of GM DPH 
network and GM Devolution work programmes.

31 March 2017 

Objectives: GM unified Public Health leadership  
Rochdale is a pilot authority in GM Hydration and Nutrition Programme

P
age 37



Public Health and Wellbeing Directorate Plan 2016-17 

Action Plan Due Date Status

Directorate Plan New. v4 Page  7  Of  8 12 January 2017

PH019a Redesign of alcohol (and drugs) service in particular the 
promotion of reduced consumption and maintaining recovery.

31 March 2017 

Objectives: Integrated commissioning
Budgets and service models have been agreed for 2016/17 and are being implemented and work has commenced on planning joint 
commissioning of services with Oldham Council for 2018/19. ..In Q 4 information was disseminated on the successful reduction of A&E 
admissions due to alcohol.

PH019b Redesign and commissioning of local community  health 
improvement and wellbeing services

31 March 2017 

Objectives: Integrated commissioning
This service was out to procurement in Q3 and the contract has been awarded and this is now in an implementation stage and will commence on 
April 1st 2017

PH019c Redesign of starting well early years services 31 March 2017 
Objectives: Integrated commissioning
20.12.16 - On hold until service re-design is agreed within the context of the Locality plan. 

PH010d To refresh the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy in the 
context of the Rochdale Locality Plan.

30 September 2017 

Objectives: Protecting health and reducing harm
Work has continued to develop the prevention and wellbeing aspects of the Locality Plan and provide public health specialist support to other 
aspects of the plan including frailty

PH011 To lead on the development of the Borough’s Joint Strategic 
Needs Assessment including identifying priority areas for more detailed 
analysis.

30 September 2017 

Objectives: Joint Strategic Needs Assessment
Work in Q3 involved reviewing information on Public Health Outcomes, Premature Mortality and obesity data

PH001c Implement an action plan for improving oral health in under- 30 September 2016  

P
age 38



Public Health and Wellbeing Directorate Plan 2016-17 

Action Plan Due Date Status

Directorate Plan New. v4 Page  8  Of  8 12 January 2017

fives.
Objectives: Reducing Childhood Obesity 

PH013 Development of the health and wellbeing board 30 September 2016  
Objectives: Health and Wellbeing Board

PH010a Establishment of robust health protection arrangements via 
contractual agreement, service spec and Job descriptions

31 December 2016  

Objectives: Protecting health and reducing harm

P
age 39



Subject: Rochdale BSF Project Co 1 - 
Hollingworth Academy & Project Co 2 - Wardle 
Academy and Falinge Park High Schools PFI - 
Annual Service Reports 2015-16

Status: Publication

Report to: Health, Schools and Care Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee

Cabinet Member: Cabinet Member for Children's 
Services

Date: 21st February 2017
 

Report of: Director of Children's Services

Author Email   Fiona.m.orr@rochdale.gov.uk

Author: Fiona Orr

Tel: 01706 926639

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT
1.1 To present the Annual Service Reports for the Rochdale BSF Project Co1 – 

Hollingworth Academy & Rochdale BSF Project Co2 - Wardle Academy and Falinge 
Park High Schools Private Finance Initiative (PFI) Projects for 2015-16 Academic year 
and summarise the service delivery standards for the preceding 12 months.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS
2.1  Members are asked to note the report and the information contained within the 

Appendices.

3. BACKGROUND
3.1 In December 2006, the Department for Education and Skills (now the Department for 

Education) announced that Rochdale MBC had been included in Wave 4 of the Building 
Schools for the Future (BSF) Programme. BSF was intended to be a long-term 
programme of investment and change that aimed to transform education for secondary 
aged pupils by providing 21st century learning environments.

In broad terms BSF involved the refurbishment and/or new build of schools through 
either capital grant (Design & Build Contract) or PFI credits (PFI Contract).

Within the BSF programme there were three PFI schools, Hollingworth Academy 
(completed in September 2011) and Falinge Park High School and Wardle Academy 
(completed in December 2013). PFI schools are owned by the Authority with a licence to 
deliver certain agreed services having been granted to the contractor. This licence will 
remain in place until the end of the operational phase of each PFI contract, being 25 
years from the service activation date.

Page 40

Agenda Item 5



Carillion Services Ltd provides a full Management Service delivering the following 
services:

 Contract Management
 Health and Safety
 Cleaning, Waste and Pest Control
 Building and Asset Maintenance
 Grounds Maintenance
 Security
 Energy and Utilities
 Caretaking and Portering

Catering remains out of scope of the Facilities Management Service provision.

For the 2015-16 financial year the unitary charge for the schemes invoiced to the 
Council by Inspired Places was £3.7M (Hollingworth), and £4.6M (Falinge Wardle). This 
charge covers the repayment of capital for the original construction of the assets as well 
as the provision of services as specified under the contract. The unitary charge is made 
up of a fixed element and a variable element, which is subject to increase each year for 
the 25 years of the contract based on the published Retail Prices Index rates. Additional 
unitary charge is incurred in relation to agreed variations to contract.

These costs are met partly through PFI annuity credits from the Government, which are 
at a fixed rate of £2.6M per year (Hollingworth) and £4.2M per year (Falinge/Wardle). 
The remainder of the funding comes from Schools funding.

A financial model is in place to equalise the funding over the lifetime of the contracts. In 
the early years of the scheme the funding available exceeds the costs incurred with the 
surplus being held in a Reserve. In the latter years the costs exceed the funding, with 
the balance coming from the accumulated Reserve. The model shows that the schemes 
remain affordable over the 25 years of the contract. 

 
Project Summary – (Full details can be found in the Appendices)

3.2 Working relationships between Carillion, the school and the Authority continue to 
improve. There are regular meetings diarised and taking place throughout the reporting 
period. 

The Facilities Management Team has carried out a number of reviews during this 
contract year, including cleaning productivity and supply chain best practice. 

The new extension at Falinge opened in September 2015 with no issues to report 
following a period of snagging.

Carillion FM is working closely with the Authority and schools to improve and add value 
to the helpdesk service provided by Carillion.

Contract Management

3.3  There were no RIDDOR reportable accidents in this reporting period.

 Carillion FM have undertaken numerous audits and inspections in the reporting period 
with no major issues highlighted.

Page 41



 There we no major or minor issues or breaches in security in the reporting period.

 A review of DBS policies and procedures has taken place to ensure school safety/
security is maintained.

 Reports on the Payment and Performance Mechanism show the value of deductions
has decreased significantly.

Cleaning, Waste & Pest Control

3.4 Cleaning standards continue to be monitored ensuring all cleaning checklists are
completed. Cleaning remains a priority on the agenda to maintain the schools high 
expectations. SITA provide a monthly report which shows the following waste recycled:

Hollingworth - 42.03%
Wardle - 39.76%
Falinge - 49.67%

Carillion FM continue to work with the schools to engender an ethos of continuous 
improvement.

Building & Asset Management

3.5 All statutory Planned Preventative Maintenance (PPM) tasks have been completed to 
time and to programme. Carillion FM continues to provide a directly delivered building, 
installation and asset maintenance service with dedicated engineers and additional 
resource/support provided where required from local contracts within the Rochdale 
Area.

All lifecycle works identified in the lifecycle survey are to be completed by the end of 
2015/16 and the works for 2016/17 have been agreed for completion by the end of 
2016/17.

Grounds Maintenance

3.6 All works have been completed as scheduled.

Energy & Utilities

3.7 The Authority has worked extensively with an external Technical Adviser to ensure the 
target setting process is correctly applied in respect of all the schools. (Full details of 
consumption figures can be found in the Appendices at Paragraph 7).

Caretaking & Portering

3.8 Wardle Academy & Falinge Park High School have had a number of 3rd Party Lettings
within the reporting period and continue to make use of their 500 Community Hours. A 
full time caretaker has been recruited and will be shared between all 3 BSF sites.

Page 42



Commercial

3.9 There have been a number of change orders raised during the reporting period:

Falinge 35
Wardle 20
Hollingworth 12

Accidental Damage has been recorded during the period as follows:

Wardle 6 incidents amounting to £1,035.50
Falinge 6 incidents amounting to £1,307.95
Hollingworth 0 incidents

No Insurance Claims have been made in the reporting year.

Conclusion

3.10 Hollingworth is now into the 5th and Wardle & Falinge are into the 3rd year of operation 
and processes are well embedded.

The Authority continues to pro-actively manage the FM provider and ensures that the 
action plan submitted is undertaken. The Authority and the SPV have a very 
professional and effective working relationship.

4. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

4.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report.

5. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

5.1 The terms of the contract are set out in the Project Agreement (PA) and associated 
Schedules to the PA.

6. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

6.1   There are no personnel implications arising from this report.

7. CORPORATE PRIORITIES

7.1 This Project supports the Council’s priority of improving performance.

8. RISK ASSESSMENT IMPLICATIONS

8.1   This is a large and complex project, and in order to ensure value for money and contract
  compliance, the Authority pro-actively manages the operation of the contract.  

  

Page 43



9. EQUALITIES IMPACTS

9.1   There are no Local Authority Workforce Equalities matters.

9.2    Equality/Community Impact Assessment: There are no equality/impact issues
         arising from this report.    

     
Background Papers

Document Place of Inspection

Page 44



Rochdale BSF – Falinge Park High School
Annual Service Report

September 2015 to August 2016

Page 45



1

Contents

Page
Executive Summary

Project Summary
2.1 Customer Satisfaction Survey
2.2 Meetings
2.3 Helpdesk & PMS

Contract Management
3.1 Health & Safety
3.1.2 Audit Inspection
3.2 Security Issues
3.3 Safeguarding
3.3.1 Helpdesk
3.3.2 PMS
3.4 Customer
3.4.1 Customer Satisfaction
3.4.2 Service Delivery Plans

Cleaning, Waste & Pest Control
4.1 Cleaning Service Delivery
4.2 Recycling

Building and Asset Maintenance
5.1 Planned Preventative Maintenance
5.2 Defects
5.3 Lifecycle

Grounds Maintenance

Energy & Utilities

Caretaking and Portering

Commercial
9.1 Change Orders
9.2 Accidental Damage
9.3 Insurance

Conclusion
10.1 Action Summary

Page 46



2

Appendices

1. PPM Planner
2. Grounds Maintenance annual planner
3. 3. H&S Inspections
4.  COSHH Register
5. ISO Certificates
6. H&S Policy
7. Business Continuity plan
8. 3rd Party Lettings Income Statement
9. Account of Damage

Page 47



3

1. Executive Summary

Rochdale BSF Falinge Park High School has now been in operation since the commencement of FM
services in December 2013.

This report is written in line with the Project Agreement clause 39.3.1 which requires submission to the
Authority of an ‘Annual Service Report’ no later than 31st December in each contract year.

It should be noted that contractually the contract year commences 1st April and ends on the 31st March
immediately following. This report covers the reporting year September 2015 to August 2016 (as per
signed variation).

Carillion Services Ltd provides a full Facilities Management Service delivering the following services:

· Contract Management
· Health & Safety
· Cleaning, Waste and Pest Control
· Building and Asset Maintenance
· Grounds Maintenance
· Security
· Energy and Utilities
· Caretaking and Portering

Catering remains out of scope of the FM service provision.

The purpose of the report is to summarise the service delivery standards for the preceding 12 months,
identify any lessons learnt and detail actions planned for the following reporting year.

Page 48



4

2. Project Summary

Working relationships between Carillion and the school continue to be improve.  Weekly operational
meetings take place and self-monitoring by the FM Team has improved and this will continue to be
developed over the next 12 months.

The FM Management Team have carried out a number of reviews during this contract year, including
cleaning productivity and supply chain best practice.  The outcomes of these reviews have been very
positive and have generated some further BICS training for the cleaning team to improve productivity
and standardise cleaning standards across the Rochdale portfolio.

The new extension opened in Sept 15 and is being managed under the FM Agreement, with no issues
to report following a period of snagging.

2.1 Customer Satisfaction Survey

A customer satisfaction survey was issued in July 2015 in partnership with the Authority and the School.
Unfortunately no responses were received.

2.2 Meetings

The Rochdale BSF contract is well managed with regular meetings diarised and taking place throughout
the reporting period as follows:

Ops Meeting FM Operation meetings take place monthly at site and are attended by the
key school and Authority representatives and the site based Facilities
Manager to address any local FM operational matters.

Client Liaison Meeting The Client Liaison meeting takes place monthly and is attended by key
representatives from the Authority, Carillion FM, School and Project Co2.

Pay Mech Meeting The Pay Mech meeting takes place monthly and is attended by key
representatives from the Authority, Carillion FM and Project Co2.  The
purpose of the meeting is to review and agree the reporting month’s level
of deductions.

2.3 Helpdesk/PMS.

Carillion FM is working closely with the Authority and the school to improve and add value to the
helpdesk service provided by Carillion.  Improvements include

- Rochdale BSF now has a dedicated Geneva database independent of Tameside services.
- Ensuring call logging provides the necessary level of detail to allow correct reporting and a prompt

response
- Improved communication methods with regards to the closure of tasks i.e. informed detail on the

repair/rectification made

Page 49



5

- Training and development of the helpdesk team to improve individual performance and enhance
the customer experience.

- Regular audits to be carried out by Contract Manager alongside helpdesk to ensure contract
processes and best practices are followed

- Weekly closed job reports issued to the LA
- A copy of the closed jobs are sent to the school representative when the works are completed

3. Contract Management

The organisation structure for the Rochdale BSF project is as detailed below:

3.1 Health and Safety

3.1.1 Accidents, Incidents & Near Misses –

No reported accidents / incidents reported within this period.

Page 50



6

The following safety issues were highlighted and dealt with in the reporting period:

- No issues to report

3.1.2 Audit & Inspection

Carillion FM have undertaken numerous audits and inspections in the reporting period in line with
our audit programme including service audits, stop shift audits and workplace audits.  The Carillion
local IMS representative Bob Clarke has supported this process and no major issues have been
highlighted during the period.

Carillion also undertake regular toolbox talks with FM staff on health & safety matters raised by the
central IMS team.

Project Co has also undertaken a programme of audit.

Project Co’s Technical Advisor Audit undertook a review of the operational services in March &
Sept and reported no significant issues with how the contract is performing.

3.2 Security Issues & Breaches

There were no major security issues or breaches in the reporting period.  Carillion FM continues to
respond on a reactive basis through the dedicated helpdesk service.

Minor issues were reported by the school and/or FM as follows:

- No issues

Health & Safety Statistics 2015/2016

Category Employee Sub-contractor Other Total

Fatal 0 0 0 NIL

Major 0 0 0 NIL

Over 3 Days 0 0 0
Nil

Dangerous occurrence 0 0 0
NIL

Non Reportable 0 0 0
NIL

Page 51



7

3.3 Safeguarding (DBS)

All direct employees of Carillion FM have up to date DBS certificates.

There have been recent legislative changes to the safeguarding eligibility criteria for obtaining
enhanced levels of DBS checks which will impact on the ability of our supply chain partners to renew
their certificates going forward.  Our supply chain partners no longer meet the required eligibility
criteria to submit renewal applications.  Long term this change will have an impact on operations and
our ability to meet the existing contract requirement as existing DBS certificates begin to age
(recommended best practice is to renew a certificate every 3 years).  A review of the DBS policies and
procedures has taken place to ensure school safety/security is maintained but that service delivery is
not compromised as a result of the legislative changes.  This subject is particularly pertinent to FM in
light of the PMS impact as a result of the school’s onerous safeguarding policy/requirements.

Carillon FM continue to work with the school to ensure all staff on site are DBS Cleared before
commencing duties.

3.3.1 Helpdesk Service –

Carillion continue to work closely with the Authority and the school to improve and add value to
the helpdesk service provided by Carillion.  The LA has undertaken an audit of the helpdesk and we
await their feedback / comments.  Improvements made to date include:

- Ensuring call logging provides the necessary level of detail to allow correct reporting and a
prompt response

- Improved communication methods with regards to the closure of tasks i.e. informed detail
on the repair/rectification made

- Close  working  with  the  school  to  prevent  ineffective  bulk  logging  of  generic  tasks  with  a
view to promoting a proactive rather than reactive approach going forward

- Copies of closed dockets are sent to the school at time of closure
- Helpdesk training delivered to Carillion FM staff and Key School staff

The school’s preference for reporting continues to be via telephone rather than email.  The below
graph shows the number of calls logged in the reporting year.

Page 52



8

3.3.2 PMS

The value of deductions has continued to significantly decrease over the reporting period due to
improved performance by Carillion FM and the correct application of the PMS. We continue to
have  weekly  meetings  to  discuss  open  jobs  with  key  FM  staff  to  ensure  the  processes  are  being
followed correctly and to minimise PMS deductions.

3.4 Customer

3.4.1 Customer Satisfaction

Clause 39.2 of the Project Agreement requires a customer satisfaction survey to be undertaken
annually, twelve months following the services availability date.  A customer satisfaction survey
was therefore undertaken in July 2015 in partnership with the Authority and the School in
accordance with Part XVII of Schedule 6 (Payment Mechanism).

Unfortunately no responses were received.

3.4.2 Service Delivery Plans

Updated Service Delivery Plans for the forthcoming year have been reviewed and sent to the LA
and school for review and comment.

Page 53



9

4. Cleaning, Waste and Pest Control

4.1 Cleaning Standards

CFM have worked closely with the LA and school to undertake joint reviews of the cleaning and agree
standards.  Any cleaning issues are raised and discussed at the weekly operational meetings and
recorded in the minutes.

4.2 Recycling

SITA continue to provide a monthly waste report, on average the % of waste recycled is 49.67%.
Carillion FM will continue to work with the school to engender an ethos of continuous improvement.

5. Building and Asset Maintenance

Carillion FM continues to provide a directly delivered building, installation and asset maintenance
service with dedicated engineers and additional resource/support provided where required from local
contracts within the Rochdale area.

General building and asset maintenance is progressing well.

5.1 Planned Preventative Maintenance (PPM)

PPM Activity table (September 15 – August 16)

Page 54



10

Performance has remained constant throughout the period with all Statutory PPM tasks being
completed to time and to programme.

The majority of maintenance on the Rochdale BSF project is performed through the pre planned
maintenance programme; however trends and information on the performance of equipment on site
and customer feedback are used to inform the approach taken to maintenance decisions.

5.2 Defects

Defects Completion –

Any jobs logged are first investigated by the FM team and if deemed to be defects are passed
through to the construction after care team to investigate and rectify.  All open jobs are discussed
during our weekly FM PMS meeting to review construction progress in resolving issues, where
required regular communication is maintained with CCL to ensure timely completion.

5.3 Lifecycle

Lifecycle works are currently planned for 2016/17 as identified in the lifecycle report.

6. Grounds Maintenance

A full grounds maintenance schedule is in place and no issues have been reported within the
reporting period.

7. Energy & Utilities

Consumption figures for the reporting year are detailed overleaf.

2014/15 Contract Year Energy Consumption

April May June July August Sept Oct

Mains Electricity kWh 44,440 35,280 52,600 42,220 31,385 49,730 59,380

Mains Gas kWh 29,911 9,164 7,094 11,268 6,820 4,611 40,926

PV Electric kWh 397 3,629 4,975 8,918 8,104 4,803 1,408

Biomass heat kWh 32,500 18,100 20,600 5,100 13,400 13,200 14,900

Page 55



11

Mains Water m3 119 195 183 76 76 96 300

Export Electric kWh 0 6 6 13 21 31 0

Nov Dec Jan Feb March

57,120 44,430 73,070 60,060 67,830

27,938 50,876 97,197 67,520 62,106

1,337 305 367 997 4,149

28,200 22,800 74,100 50,300 47,400

207 143 243 103 237

0 0 0 0 0

2015/16 Contract Year Energy Consumption

Consumption
(kWh)

Grid Electricity
PV Generation

(kWh)
Electricity

Export

Total
Electricity

Consumption
Main Gas

Biomass
Heat (kWh)

Total Heat

YTD 2014/15 645,078 39,390 -44 684,424 423,320 332,200 755,520

Apr-15 46,970 8,391 -80 55,281 35,873 36,800 72,673

May-15 51,630 3,940 -10 55,560 44,599 23,300 67,899

Jun-15 44,610 8,125 -110 52,625 22,636 23,300 45,936

Jul-15 40,930 8,488 -200 49,218 8,136 31,600 39,736

Aug-15 21,790 6,269 -260 27,799 15,080 0 15,080

Sep-15 44,210 6,419 -180 50,449 35,649 0 35,649

Oct-15 48,340 2,934 -10 51,264 47,039 0 47,039

Nov-15 71,170 0 0 71,170 89,323 0 89,323

Dec-15 28,960 352 0 29,312 53,828 1,900 55,728

Jan-16 66,370 340 0 66,710 72,153 63,800 135,953

Feb-16 53,670 2,294 0 55,964 71,373 45,800 117,173

Mar-16 56,480 2,616 -30 59,066 79,338 31,800 111,138

Page 56



12

YTD 2015/16 575,130 50,168 -880 624,418 575,028 258,300 833,328

8. Caretaking and Portering

There have been a number of 3rd party lettings within the reporting period although school continue to
make use of their 500 community hours to generate a letting income for school benefit.

9. Commercial

9.1 Change Orders

Request Total Raised
in Reporting
Period

Total Cancelled
in Reporting
Period

Authority Notice Change (ANC) 35 11
Contractor Notice of Change (CNC) 0 0

The key changes during 2015/2016 included:

Page 57



13
Page 58



14

9.2 Events of Accidental Damage

Please see appendix 9 detailing damage events for the reporting period.

9.3 Insurance

No insurance claims have been made in the reporting year.

10. Conclusion

10.1 Action Summary

By way of conclusion the following action plan is submitted as key drivers/improvements for the
forthcoming year;

Item Action Owner
1 Contracts Manager to carry out

audits of the helpdesk to ensure
processes are being followed.
Commercial awareness training to
be arranged for helpdesk
operators.

CFM.

2 Continue to monitor the staffing
levels to ensure correct
headcount.

CFM

3 Continue to monitor and review
the safeguarding contractual
requirements and the school
safeguarding policy in light of
recent legislative changes

All parties to input and agree

4 Ensure application and
implementation of the agreed
protocol for delay requests
continues to be followed by all
FM site staff

CFM

5 Ensure FM Site Team continue to
take a pro-active approach and
monitor this via helpdesk jobs
raised.

CFM

Page 59



Rochdale BSF – Hollingworth Academy
Annual Service Report

September 2015 to August 2016

Page 60



1

Contents

Page
1. Executive Summary

2. Project Summary
2.1 Customer Satisfaction Survey
2.2 Meetings
2.3 Helpdesk & PMS

3. Contract Management
3.1 Health & Safety
3.1.2 Audit Inspection
3.2 Security Issues
3.3 Safeguarding
3.3.1 Helpdesk
3.3.2 PMS
3.4 Customer
3.4.1 Customer Satisfaction
3.4.2 Service Delivery Plans

4. Cleaning, Waste & Pest Control
4.1 Cleaning Service Delivery
4.2 Recycling

5. Building and Asset Maintenance
5.1 Planned Preventative Maintenance
5.2 Defects
5.3 Lifecycle

6. Grounds Maintenance

7. Energy & Utilities

8. Caretaking and Portering

9. Commercial
9.1 Change Orders
9.2 Accidental Damage
9.3 Insurance

10. Conclusion
10.1 Action Summary

Page 61



2

Appendices

1. PPM Planner
2. Grounds Maintenance annual planner
3. 3. H&S Inspections
4.  COSHH Register
5. ISO Certificates
6. H&S Policy
7. Business Continuity plan
8. 5 year account of damage

Page 62



3

1. Executive Summary

Rochdale BSF Hollingworth has now been in operation since the commencement of FM services in
September 2011.

This report is written in line with the Project Agreement clause 39.3.1 which requires submission to the
Authority of an ‘Annual Service Report’ no later than 31st December in each contract year.

It should be noted that contractually the contract year commences 1st April and ends on the 31st March
immediately following. This report covers the reporting year September 15 to August 16 (as per
variation submitted and agreed by all parties)

Carillion Services Ltd provides a full Facilities Management Service delivering the following services:

· Contract Management
· Health & Safety
· Cleaning, Waste and Pest Control
· Building and Asset Maintenance
· Grounds Maintenance
· Security
· Energy and Utilities
· Caretaking and Portering

Catering remains out of scope of the FM service provision.

The purpose of the report is to summarise the service delivery standards for the preceding 12 months,
identify any lessons learnt and detail actions planned for the following reporting year.

Page 63



4

2. Project Summary

Working relationships between Carillion and the school continue to be positive.  Weekly operational
meetings take place and self-monitoring by the FM Team has improved and this will continue to be
developed over the next 12 months.

The FM Management Team have carried out a number of reviews during this contract year, including
cleaning productivity and supply chain best practice.  The outcomes of these reviews have been very
positive and have generated some further BICS training for the cleaning team to improve productivity
and standardise cleaning standards across the Rochdale portfolio.

The new extension which is due to open in Dec 16 is on target for completion.  Weekly FM/School/CCL
meetings are taking place.  No real issues have been identified.  The MUGA was handed over on 5th

September 2016.

2.1 Customer Satisfaction Survey

A customer satisfaction survey was sent out in July 2016 but unfortunately NO responses have been
received. .

2.2 Meetings

The Rochdale BSF contract is well managed with regular meetings diarised and taking place throughout
the reporting period as follows:

Ops Meeting FM Operation meetings take place weekly at site and are attended by the
key school and Authority representatives (once per month) and the site
based Facilities Manager to address any local FM operational matters.

Client Liaison Meeting The Client Liaison meeting takes place quarterly and is attended by key
representatives from the Authority, Carillion FM, School and Project Co1.

Pay Mech Meeting The Pay Mech meeting takes place monthly and is attended by key
representatives from the Authority, Carillion FM and Project Co1.  The
purpose of the meeting is to review and agree the reporting month’s level
of deductions.

2.3 Helpdesk/PMS

Carillion FM is working closely with the Authority and the school to improve and add value to the
helpdesk service provided by Carillion.  Improvements include

- Rochdale BSF now has a dedicated Geneva database independent of Tameside services.
- Ensuring call logging provides the necessary level of detail to allow correct reporting and a prompt

response
- Improved communication methods with regards to the closure of tasks i.e. informed detail on the

repair/rectification made
- Weekly closed job reports issued to the LA

Page 64



5

- Copy of closed jobs emailed to school representatives when jobs are closed

3. Contract Management

The organisation structure for the Rochdale BSF project is as detailed below:

3.1 Health and Safety

3.1.1 Accidents, Incidents & Near Misses

Carillion FM has had no reportable accidents in the reporting period (RIDDOR).

No safety issues were highlighted  in the reporting period: -

One environmental incident reporting in May 16:

GOVS/ENV/0692 – 20/05/2016 11:00

Community Services (CS), Community Services - CS, Rochdale BSF, Hollingworth Business Enterprise
College,

Page 65



6

CHP Area, Environment

Severity: Low

A minor spillage of Bio Fuel has occurred during the delivery of Rapeseed oil to site. Delivery
company ADM Logistics called an emergency clean up team to attend. The oil leek is being cleared
off the tarmac and there was no exposure to staff or students.

-

3.1.2 Audit & Inspection

Carillion FM have undertaken numerous audits and inspections in the reporting period in line with
our audit programme including service audits, stop shift audits and workplace audits.  The Carillion
local IMS representative Bob Clarke has supported this process and no major issues have been
highlighted during the period.

Carillion also undertake regular toolbox talks with FM staff on health & safety matters raised by the
central IMS team.

Project Co has also undertaken a programme of audit.

Project  Co’s  Technical  Advisor  Audit  undertook  a  review  of  the  operational  services  in  March  &
Sept and reported no significant issues with how the contract is performing.

3.2 Security Issues & Breaches

There were no major security issues or breaches in the reporting period.  Carillion FM continues to
respond on a reactive basis through the dedicated helpdesk service.

Minor issues were reported by the school and/or FM as follows:

No issues reported

Health & Safety Statistics 2015/2016

Category Employee Sub-contractor Other Total

Fatal 0 0 0 NIL

Major 0 0 0 NIL

Over 3 Days 0 0 0
Nil

Dangerous occurrence 0 0 0
NIL

Non Reportable 0 0 0
NIL

Page 66



7

3.3 Safeguarding (DBS)

All direct employees of Carillion FM have up to date DBS certificates.

There have been recent legislative changes to the safeguarding eligibility criteria for obtaining
enhanced levels of DBS checks which will impact on the ability of our supply chain partners to renew
their certificates going forward.  Our supply chain partners no longer meet the required eligibility
criteria to submit renewal applications.  Long term this change will have an impact on operations and
our ability to meet the existing contract requirement as existing DBS certificates begin to age
(recommended best practice is to renew a certificate every 3 years).  A review of the DBS policies and
procedures has taken place to ensure school safety/security is maintained but that service delivery is
not compromised as a result of the legislative changes.  This subject is particularly pertinent to FM in
light of the PMS impact as a result of the school’s onerous safeguarding policy/requirements.

3.3.1 Helpdesk Service

Carillion continue to work closely with the Authority and the school to improve and add value to
the helpdesk service provided by Carillion.  The LA has undertaken an audit of the helpdesk and we
await their feedback / comments.  Improvements made to date include:

- Ensuring call logging provides the necessary level of detail to allow correct reporting and a
prompt response

- Improved communication methods with regards to the closure of tasks i.e. informed detail
on the repair/rectification made

- Close  working  with  the  school  to  prevent  ineffective  bulk  logging  of  generic  tasks  with  a
view to promoting a proactive rather than reactive approach going forward

- Helpdesk training provided for Carillion and Key School Staff
- Copies of closed dockets sent to the school at the time of closure

The school’s preference for reporting continues to be via email rather than telephone.  The below
graph shows the number of calls logged in the reporting year.

Page 67



8

3.3.2 PMS

The value of deductions has decreased significantly over the reporting period due to improved
performance by Carillion FM and the correct application of the PMS. We continue to have weekly
meetings to discuss open jobs with key FM staff to ensure the processes are being followed
correctly and to minimise PMS deductions.

3.4 Customer

3.4.1 Customer Satisfaction

Clause 39.2 of the Project Agreement requires a customer satisfaction survey to be undertaken
annually, twelve months following the services availability date.  A customer satisfaction survey
was issued in July 16 but unfortunately no responses have been received.

3.4.2 Service Delivery Plans

Updated Service Delivery Plans for the forthcoming year have been reviewed and sent to the LA
and school for review and comment, no comments have been received.

4. Cleaning, Waste and Pest Control

4.1 Cleaning Standards

Cleaning standards continue to be monitored throughout the month ensuring all cleaning checklists
are completed and available to be viewed.  Cleaning standards are discussed at the monthly
operational meetings and recorded on the minutes.

There have been no reported infestations on site over the last 12 months

Page 68



9

4.2 Recycling

SITA continue to provide a monthly waste report, on average the % of waste recycled is 42.03%.
Carillion FM will continue to work with the school to engender an ethos of continuous improvement.

5. Building and Asset Maintenance

Carillion FM continues to provide a directly delivered building, installation and asset maintenance
service with dedicated engineers and additional resource/support provided where required from local
contracts within the Rochdale area.

5.1 Planned Preventative Maintenance (PPM)

PPM Activity table (Sept 15 to Aug 16)

Performance has remained constant throughout the period with all Statutory PPM tasks being
completed to time and to programme.

The majority of maintenance on the Rochdale BSF project is performed through the pre-planned
maintenance programme; however trends and information on the performance of equipment on site
and customer feedback are used to inform the approach taken to maintenance decisions.

5.2 Defects

5.2.1 Defects Completion

Any jobs logged are first investigated by the FM team and if deemed to be defects are passed
through to the construction after care team to investigate and rectify.  All open jobs are discussed
during our weekly FM PMS meeting to review construction progress in resolving issues.  A number
of roof leaks have been reported within this period and these have dealt by CCL.

Page 69



10

5.3 Lifecycle

All lifecycle works as identified in the lifecycle survey are to be completed by the end in 2015/16.  The
2016/17 works have been agreed and will be completed by the end of 2016/2017.

6. Grounds Maintenance

All PPM works have been completed as scheduled.  No issues identified.

7. Energy & Utilities

Consumption figures for the reporting year are detailed overleaf.

2014/15 Contract Year Energy Consumption

Fuel
kWh April May June July August Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March

Gas 79,952 50,911 24,572 27,056 30,191 20,169 48,424 42,968 89,554 83,047 54,020 56,844

Elec
IN 49,150 51,020 52,093 57,926 32,537 46,634 48,994 34,271 43,228 51,963 34,818 46,956

CHP
Elec
OUT

-
12,009

-
10,341

-
10,768 -7,189

-
15,326 -6,898

-
13,923

-
16,289

-
14,641

-
10,836

-
20,439

-
17,911

CHP
kWe 23,138 30,037 36,109 19,778 30,823 38,472 36,150 45,896 35,548 32,658 44,833 44,569

CHP
kWth 29,940 35,198 38,760 24,878 27,329 38,434 42,092 52,246 43,245 36,700 54,854 52,152

2015/16 Contract Year Energy Consumption

Page 70



11

Consumption
(kWh)

Grid
Electricity

(HHD - kWh)
CHP Elec

Generation
Electricity

Export
Total Electricity
Consumption

Main Gas CHP Heat
Generation

Total Heat
(Gas & CHP)

YTD 2014/15 553,520 559,256 -156,570 956,206 619,249 475,828 1,095,077

Apr-15 49,735 37,848 -12,248 75,335 67,631 32,104 99,735

May-15 60,047 28,363 -7,302 81,108 61,477 23,355 84,832

Jun-15 52,193 50,351 -16,672 85,872 31,966 24,190 56,156

Jul-15 50,411 26,242 -8,389 68,264 17,682 39,772 57,454

Aug-15 41,943 11,061 -4,954 48,050 34,210 7,542 41,752

Sep-15 73,649 0 0 73,649 79,304 0 79,304

Oct-15 70,799 14,781 -4,655 80,925 54,169 21,288 75,457

Nov-15 41,889 69,962 -16,343 95,508 32,299 50,544 82,843

Dec-15 47,715 44,970 -11,259 81,426 70,052 39,490 109,542

Jan-16 43,970 59,517 -12,333 91,154 59,278 43,332 102,610

Feb-16 43,349 55,012 -12,929 85,432 40,929 46,373 87,302

Mar-16 52,540 56,820 -14,047 95,313 74,506 47,295 121,801

YTD 2015/16 628,240 454,927 -121,131 962,036 623,503 375,285 998,788

8. Caretaking and Portering

There have been no 3rd party lettings within the reporting period although school continue to make use
of their 500 community hours to generate a letting income for school benefit.

No issues to report.

Page 71



12

9. Commercial

9.1 Change Orders

Request Total Raised
in Reporting
Period

Total Cancelled
in Reporting
Period

Authority Notice Change (ANC) 12 1
Contractor Notice of Change (CNC) 2 0

The key changes during 2015/2016 included:

9.2 Events of Accidental Damage

There have been no occasions of deliberate/accidental damage throughout the reporting year.

Please refer to appendix 8 5 year account of damage.

Page 72



13

9.3 Insurance

No insurance claims have been made in the reporting year

10. Conclusion

10.1 Action Summary

By way of conclusion the following action plan is submitted as key drivers/improvements for the
forthcoming year;

Item Action Owner
1 Contracts Manager to carry out

audits of the helpdesk to ensure
processes are being followed.
Commercial awareness training to
be arranged for helpdesk
operators.

CFM.

2 Continue to monitor the staffing
levels to ensure correct
headcount.

CFM

3 Continue to monitor and review
the safeguarding contractual
requirements and the school
safeguarding policy in light of
recent legislative changes

All parties to input and agree

4 Ensure application and
implementation of the agreed
protocol for delay requests
continues to be followed by all
FM site staff

CFM

5 Ensure FM Site Team continue to
take a pro-active approach and
monitor this via helpdesk jobs
raised.

CFM

6 Recruitment underway for new
extension

CFM

Page 73



Rochdale BSF - Wardle Academy
Annual Service Report

September 2015 to August 2016

Page 74



1

Contents

Executive Summary

Project Summary
2.1 Customer Satisfaction Survey
2.2 Meetings
2.3 Helpdesk & PMS

Contract Management
3.1 Health & Safety
3.1.2 Audit Inspection
3.2 Security Issues
3.3 Safeguarding
3.3.1 Helpdesk
3.3.2 PMS
3.4 Customer
3.4.1 Customer Satisfaction
3.4.2 Service Delivery Plans

Cleaning, Waste & Pest Control
4.1 Cleaning Service Delivery
4.2 Recycling

Building and Asset Maintenance
5.1 Planned Preventative Maintenance
5.2 Defects
5.3 Lifecycle

Grounds Maintenance

Energy & Utilities

Caretaking and Portering

Commercial
9.1 Change Orders
9.2 Accidental Damage
9.3 Insurance

Conclusion
10.1 Action Summary

Page 75



2

Appendices

1. PPM Planner
2. Grounds Maintenance annual planner
3.  H&S Inspections
4. COSHH Register
5. ISO Certificates
6. H&S Policy
7. Business Continuity plan
8. 3rd Party Lettings Income Statement
9. Account of Damage

Page 76



3

1. Executive Summary

Rochdale BSF Wardle Academy has now been in operation since the commencement of FM services in
December 2013.

This report is written in line with the Project Agreement clause 39.3.1 which requires submission to the
Authority of an ‘Annual Service Report’ no later than 31st December in each contract year.

It should be noted that contractually the contract year commences 1st April and ends on the 31st March
immediately following. This report covers the reporting year September 2015 to August 2016(as per
agreed variation).

Carillion Services Ltd provides a full Facilities Management Service delivering the following services:

· Contract Management
· Health & Safety
· Cleaning, Waste and Pest Control
· Building and Asset Maintenance
· Grounds Maintenance
· Security
· Energy and Utilities
· Caretaking and Portering

Catering remains out of scope of the FM service provision.

The purpose of the report is to summarise the service delivery standards for the preceding 12 months,
identify any lessons learnt and detail actions planned for the following reporting year.

2. Project Summary

Working relationships between Carillion and the school continue to be positive.  Weekly operational
meetings take place and self-monitoring by the FM Team has improved and this will continue to be
developed over the next 12 months.

The FM Management Team have carried out a number of reviews during this contract year, including
cleaning productivity and supply chain best practice.  The outcomes of these reviews have been very
positive and have generated some further BICS training for the cleaning team to improve productivity
and standardise cleaning standards across the Rochdale portfolio.

2.1 Customer Satisfaction Survey

A customer satisfaction survey was undertaken in July 2016 in partnership with the Authority and
the School and unfortunately no responses were received.

Page 77



4

The Rochdale BSF contract is well managed with regular meetings diarised and taking place throughout
the reporting period as follows:

Ops Meeting FM Operation meetings take place monthly at site and are attended by the
key school and Authority representatives and the site based Facilities
Manager to address any local FM operational matters.

Client Liaison Meeting The Client Liaison meeting takes place monthly and is attended by key
representatives from the Authority, Carillion FM, School and Project Co2.

Pay Mech Meeting The Pay Mech meeting takes place monthly and is attended by key
representatives from the Authority, Carillion FM and Project Co2.  The
purpose of the meeting is to review and agree the reporting month’s level
of deductions.

2.2 Helpdesk/PMS

Carillion FM is working closely with the Authority and the school to improve and add value to the
helpdesk service provided by Carillion.  Improvements include

- Rochdale BSF now has a dedicated Geneva database independent of Tameside services.
- Ensuring call logging provides the necessary level of detail to allow correct reporting and a prompt

response
- Improved communication methods with regards to the closure of tasks i.e. informed detail on the

repair/rectification made
- Weekly closed job report issued to the LA

3. Contract Management

The organisation structure for the Rochdale BSF project is as detailed below:

Page 78



5

3.1 Health and Safety

3.1.1 Accidents, Incidents & Near Misses

No accidents / incidents reported within period.

There were no safety issues highlighted with in the reporting period:

-

Health & Safety Statistics 2015/2016

Category Employee Sub-contractor Other Total

Fatal 0 0 0 NIL

Major 0 0 0 NIL

Over 3 Days 0 0 0
Nil

Dangerous occurrence 0 0 0
NIL

Non Reportable 0 0 0
NIL

Page 79



6

3.1.2 Audit & Inspection

Carillion FM have undertaken numerous audits and inspections in the reporting period in line with
our audit programme including service audits, stop shift audits and workplace audits.  The Carillion
local IMS representative Bob Clarke has supported this process and no major issues have been
highlighted during the period.

Carillion also undertake regular toolbox talks with FM staff on health & safety matters raised by the
central IMS team.

3.2 Security Issues & Breaches

There were no major security issues or breaches in the reporting period.  Carillion FM continues to
respond on a reactive basis through the dedicated helpdesk service.

Minor issues were reported by the school and/or FM as follows:

- No issues

3.3 Safeguarding (DBS)

All direct employees of Carillion FM have up to date DBS certificates.

There have been recent legislative changes to the safeguarding eligibility criteria for obtaining
enhanced levels of DBS checks which will impact on the ability of our supply chain partners to renew
their certificates going forward.  Our supply chain partners no longer meet the required eligibility
criteria to submit renewal applications.  Long term this change will have an impact on operations and
our ability to meet the existing contract requirement as existing DBS certificates begin to age
(recommended best practice is to renew a certificate every 3 years).  A review of the DBS policies and
procedures has taken place to ensure school safety/security is maintained but that service delivery is
not compromised as a result of the legislative changes.  This subject is particularly pertinent to FM in
light of the PMS impact as a result of the school’s onerous safeguarding policy/requirements.

3.3.1 Helpdesk Service

Carillion continue to work closely with the Authority and the school to improve and add value to
the helpdesk service provided by Carillion.  The LA has undertaken an audit of the helpdesk and we
await their feedback / comments.  Improvements made to date include:

- Ensuring call logging provides the necessary level of detail to allow correct reporting and a
prompt response

- Improved communication methods with regards to the closure of tasks i.e. informed detail
on the repair/rectification made

- Close  working  with  the  school  to  prevent  ineffective  bulk  logging  of  generic  tasks  with  a
view to promoting a proactive rather than reactive approach going forward

Page 80



7

- A copy of the closed jobs are sent to the school representative when the works have been
completed.

The school’s preference for reporting continues to be via telephone rather than email.  The below
table shows the number of calls logged in the reporting year.

3.3.2 PMS

The value of deductions has continued to significantly decrease in the reporting period due to
improved performance by Carillion FM and the correct application of the PMS. We continue to
have  weekly  meetings  to  discuss  open  jobs  with  key  FM  staff  to  ensure  the  processes  are  being
followed correctly and to minimise PMS deductions.

3.4 Customer

3.4.1 Customer Satisfaction

Clause 39.2 of the Project Agreement requires a customer satisfaction survey to be undertaken
annually, twelve months following the services availability date.  A customer satisfaction survey
was issued in July 16 but unfortunately no responses have been received.

3.4.2 Service Delivery Plans

Updated Service Delivery Plans for the forthcoming year have been reviewed and sent to the LA
and school for review and comment. No comments received final version of SDP’s issued to LA.

Page 81



8

4. Cleaning, Waste and Pest Control

4.1 Cleaning Standards

Cleaning standards continue to be monitored throughout the month ensuring all cleaning checklists
are completed and available to be viewed.  Cleaning standards are discussed at the monthly
operational meetings and recorded on the minutes.

4.2 Recycling

SITA continue to provide a monthly waste report, on average the % of waste recycled is 39.76%.
Carillion FM will continue to work with the school to engender an ethos of continuous improvement.

5. Building and Asset Maintenance

Carillion FM continues to provide a directly delivered building, installation and asset maintenance
service with dedicated engineers and additional resource/support provided where required from local
contracts within the Rochdale area.

General building and asset maintenance is progressing well.

5.1 Planned Preventative Maintenance (PPM)

PPM Activity table (September 15 – August 16)

Performance has remained constant throughout the period with all Statutory PPM tasks being
completed to time and to programme.

The majority of maintenance on the Rochdale BSF project is performed through the pre planned
maintenance programme; however trends and information on the performance of equipment on site
and customer feedback are used to inform the approach taken to maintenance decisions.

Page 82



9

5.2 Defects

5.2.1 Defects Completion

Any jobs logged are first investigated by the FM team and if deemed to be defects are passed
through to the construction after care team to investigate and rectify.  All open jobs are discussed
during our weekly FM PMS meeting to review construction progress in resolving issues where
required regular communication is maintained with CCL to ensure timely completion.

5.3 Lifecycle

All lifecycle works are currently planned for 2016/17 contract year as identified in the lifecycle
report.

6. Grounds Maintenance

The grounds maintenance schedule is in place and all works are completed as per the schedule.  No issues
to report.

7. Energy & Utilities

Consumption figures for the reporting year are detailed overleaf.

2014/15 Contract Year Energy Consumption

April May June July August Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March

Mains
Electricity
kWh 43,979 28,289 43,737 39,564 11,585 45,328 48,843 47,626 37,056 60,256 43,085 32,462

Mains Gas
kWh 22,628 14,998 1,972 6,658 856 7,105 30,895 10,864 5,580 105,321 50,334 32,940

PV Electric
kWh 8,849 9,645 7,564 5,817 9,880 6,412 3,057 1,515 624 899 2,207 2,321

Biomass Heat
kWh 38,000 22,000 16,700 21,000 18,100 24,200 12,700 42,900 53,700 51,800 45,500 34,900

Mains Water
m3 82 212 288 51 234 228 247 188 286 270 205

Export
Electric kWh 411 472 839 422 460 337 50 8 0 1 39 7

Page 83



10

2015/16 Contract Year Energy Consumption

Consumption
(kWh)

Grid Electricity
(HHD - kWh)

PV
Generation

(kWh)

Electricity
Export

Total Electricity
Consumption

Main Gas Biomass
Heat (kWh) Total Heat

YTD 2014/15 499,129 58,790 -3,046 554,874 310,890 381,500 692,390

Apr-15 30,728 11,298 -505 41,521 57,871 54,400 112,271

May-15 35,360 6,784 -193 41,952 25,497 33,000 58,497

Jun-15 38,461 10,799 -524 48,736 44,064 4,300 48,364

Jul-15 31,450 9,284 -825 39,909 31,896 100 31,996

Aug-15 13,521 6,906 -1,121 19,306 14,970 0 14,970

Sep-15 36,941 7,119 -697 43,363 32,105 0 32,105

Oct-15 41,790 3,308 -80 45,018 45,184 0 45,184

Nov-15 48,044 1,150 -33 49,161 64,732 0 64,732

Dec-15 42,811 422 0 43,233 52,252 700 52,952

Jan-16 50,657 605 0 51,262 55,366 60,100 115,466

Feb-16 44,560 1,911 -10 46,461 52,198 65,800 117,998

Mar-16 45,891 3,252 -148 48,996 80,746 15,800 96,546

YTD 2015/16 460,215 62,837 -4,136 518,916 556,881 234,200 791,081

8. Caretaking and Portering

There have been a number of 3rd party lettings within the reporting period although school continue to
make use of their 500 community hours to generate a letting income for school benefit.   We have
recruited one full time caretaker for the Rochdale contract and this resource will be shared between all
three sites.

Page 84



11

9. Commercial

9.1 Change Orders

Request Total Raised
in Reporting
Period

Total Cancelled
in Reporting
Period

Authority Notice Change (ANC) 20 1
Contractor Notice of Change (CNC) 1 0

The key changes during 2015/2016 included:

Page 85



12

9.2 Events of Accidental Damage

Please refer to appendix 9 for details of damage within reporting period.

9.3 Insurance

No insurance claims have been made in the reporting year.

10. Conclusion

10.1 Action Summary

By way of conclusion the following action plan is submitted as key drivers/improvements for the
forthcoming year;

Item Action Owner
1 Contracts Manager to carry out

audits of the helpdesk to ensure
processes are being followed.
Commercial awareness training to
be arranged for helpdesk
operators.

CFM.

2 Continue to monitor the staffing
levels to ensure correct
headcount.

CFM

3 Continue to monitor and review
the safeguarding contractual
requirements and the school
safeguarding policy in light of
recent legislative changes

All parties to input and agree

4 Ensure application and
implementation of the agreed
protocol for delay requests
continues to be followed by all
FM site staff

CFM

5 Ensure FM Site Team continue to
take a pro-active approach and
monitor this via helpdesk jobs
raised.

CFM

Page 86



Subject: Rochdale Grouped Schools PFI - 
Annual Service Report 2015-166

Status:  Publication

Report to: Health, Schools and Care Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee

Cabinet Member: Cabinet Member for Children's 
Services

Date: 21st February 2017  

Report of: Director of Children's Services

Author Email  Fiona.m.orr@rochdale.gov.uk

Author: Fiona Orr

Tel: 01706 926639

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT
1.1 To present the Annual Service Report for the Rochdale Grouped Schools Private 

Finance Initiative (PFI) Project for 2015-16 and to summarise the service delivery 
standards for the preceding 12 months.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS
2.1  Members are asked to note the report and the information contained within the 

Appendix.

3. BACKGROUND
3.1 The Rochdale Schools PFI Project Agreement was signed in February 2006 for a period 

of 25 years with the following schools being included:

 Marland Hill CP School was completed in September 2006, 
 Springside and Hamer including the M6 theatre, Hollin and Newlands, Oulder Hill 

and Redwood being completed in September 2007

The scope of services provided by Grosvenor Facilities Management comprises:

 Planned Preventative Maintenance
 Cleaning
 Catering
 Grounds Maintenance
 Helpdesk
 Security
 Authority Damage and Vandalism
 Variations and Lifecycle
 Utilities and Energy
 Health and Safety

For the 2015-16 financial year the unitary charge for the scheme invoiced to the Council
by Axiom was £7.9M. This charge covers the repayment of capital for the original 
construction of the assets as well as the provision of services as specified under the 
contract. The unitary charge is made up of a fixed element and a variable element, 

Page 87

Agenda Item 6



which is subject to increases each year for the 25 years of the contract based on the 
published retail prices index (excluding mortgage interest) rates. Additional unitary 
charge is incurred in relation to agreed variations to contract.

These costs are partly met through PFI annuity credits from the Government which are 
at a fixed rate of £4.6M per year. The remainder of the funding comes from schools 
funding.

A financial model is run to equalise the funding over the lifetime of the contract. In the 
early years of the scheme the funding available exceeds the costs incurred with the 
surplus being held in a Reserve. In the latter years the costs exceed the funding, with 
the balance coming from the accumulated Reserve. The financial model shows that the 
scheme remains affordable over the 25 years of the contract.

Project Summary

3.2 Grosvenor Facilities Management (GFM) has been the Facilities Management Company 
since 2010 and has continued to improve standards of delivery. There have been 
changes in the structure of GFM Management and site based teams with all vacancies 
being recruited to ensuring continuity of service delivery.

The Local Authority monitors the delivery of the services provided by GFM through 
monthly performance meetings and the helpdesk (where schools and GFM report 
matters that require follow-up). GFM have retained ISO 9001 and added a number of 
new contractors and suppliers to their approved list at the request of the schools. The 
customer satisfaction survey was undertaken and the customer satisfaction rating was 
88.5%.

Contract Management - (Refer to Appendix 1) 

Planned Preventative Maintenance

3.3 This is a very robust process with 100% tasks completed during 2015-16, which 
therefore increases the levels of asset performance.

Cleaning

3.4 The appointment of the cleaning supervisor has had positive results, which  resulted in a 
reduced need to bring in specialist cleaners allowing all parties to save money and 
preventing rooms being out of use for any length of time.

Catering

3.5 Menus continue to be changed termly and analysed using the Nutmeg System.  A 
number of staffing changes have been undertaken during 2015 -16 with all vacancies 
being recruited to.  A new cashless catering system has been implemented during the 
reporting period.

Grounds Maintenance

3.6 A large amount of work has been undertaken around the sites with regards to planting.  
The field at Hollin and the top field at Oulder Hill have both had work completed to allow 
them to be used on a more regular basis.

Page 88



Helpdesk

3.7 The helpdesk has performed well during the reporting period.

Security

3.8 There were no security issues during the reporting period.

Authority Damage and Vandalism

3.9 There have been a total of 100 incidents across all sites.  This item is raised at the 
monthly operational meeting with schools to try and work together with GFM to reduce 
incidents.

Payment Mechanism

3.10 The Paymech meeting takes place monthly and is attended by GFM and the Authority. 

The deductions for the reporting period are:

£5,295.07 – unavailability
£4,938.96 – performance
£    535.20 – reporting failures

Variations and Lifecycle

3.11 There have been a total of 34 variations across the project totalling £358,805.91.
A total of 55 Lifecycle works have been undertaken totalling £276,327.47.

Utilities and Energy

3.12 The Authority works closely with GFM to ensure the target setting process and the 
reconciliation process are correctly applied in respect of all schools.  The variations in 
consumption are now more settled and within the +/- 10% variance within the contract.

Health and Safety

3.13 GFM has appointed a new Health and Safety Manager.  The Annual Health and Safety 
Meeting was held in August 2016, there were no issues identified at that meeting.  
There were no Health and Safety breaches during this reporting period.  A review of 
evacuation procedures has been undertaken between the schools Heads involving 
GFM.

Conclusion

3.14 This is a very established contract with very few issues and robust contract 
management in place with excellent governance arrangements. When any issues are 
identified, remedial actions are very quickly put in place to rectify them. The Local 
Authority and the SPV have a very professional and effective relationship with quarterly 
liaison meetings.

4. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

4.1 There are no financial implications arising from the report.

Page 89



5. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

5.1 The terms of the contract are set out in the Project Agreement (PA) and the appendices 
to the PA. 

6. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

6.1    There are no personnel implications arising from this report.

7. CORPORATE PRIORITIES

7.1 The Project supports the Council’s priority if improving performance.

8. RISK ASSESSMENT IMPLICATIONS

8.1 This is a large and complex project, and in order to ensure value for money and contract 
compliance, the Authority pro-actively manages the operation of the contract.

9. EQUALITIES IMPACTS

9.1 There are no local Authority Workforce Equalities matters.

9.2 Equality/Community Impact Assessment: there are no equality/community impact issues 
arising from this report.

Background Papers
Document Place of Inspection

Page 90



Annual Service Report

Rochdale Schools

2015-2016

Page 91



-1-
Rochdale Schools Annual Service Report 2015-2016

CONTENTS

1. Executive Summary

2. Operational Services

a. Planned Preventative Maintenance
b. Cleaning
c. Catering
d. Grounds
e. Helpdesk
f. Security
g. Authority Damage & Vandalism

3. Payment Mechanism

4. Variations and Lifecycle

5. Utilities and Energy

6. Health and Safety

7. GFM Management

8. Service Delivery Improvements

9. Customer Satisfaction Survey

Appendix A: Incident and Accident Report

Appendix B: GFM Rochdale Schools Structure

Appendix C: Annual Maintenance Plan

Appendix D: Compliments and Complaints

Appendix E: List of GFM Contractors

Appendix G: Annual Energy Summaries September 2015-August 2016

Page 92



-2-
Rochdale Schools Annual Service Report 2015-2016

1. Executive Summary

The annual service report has been completed by GFM on behalf of the SPV in line with the 
requirements outlined by Rochdale Borough Council (RBC).  The report covers the period 
September 2015 to August 2016.

GFM have been the FM Co since February 2010.  GFM have continued to improve standards of 
delivery in all aspects of facilities management.

The report provides a summary of service delivery aspects in all operations areas of the 
contract.

2. Operational Services

a) Planned Preventative Maintenance (PPM)

The PDA system is robust and manages the PPM for the estate and therefore increased 
levels of asset performance can be expected in the coming years through correctly 
managed maintenance regimes.

PPM Status

PPM Tasks Completed 2015 – 2016

Page 93



-3-
Rochdale Schools Annual Service Report 2015-2016

Graph 1: PPM Tasks Completed

b) Cleaning

Some staff have left and have been replaced and several staff have been or are on maternity 
leave.  All positions have been successfully covered by the existing team with temporary 
agency staff being brought in when necessary to ensure there is no decline in service. 

The appointment of Liam Burke to the position of Cleaning Supervisor has had positive 
results with particular feedback from Oulder Hill School.  Liam’s experience has resulted in 
reduced need to bring in specialist cleaners when there are toilet accidents (particularly 
within the SEN Schools) allowing all parties to save money and also by preventing rooms 
being closed and out of use for any length of time.

Staff have rotated sections within Schools gaining experience of the different needs of each 
area, going forward this may be extended to staff rotating between sites.

c) Catering

Menus continue to be changed termly and be analysed using the Nutmeg system.  Each 
Kitchen remains responsible for their own menus due to their knowledge of the children’s 
likes and dislikes.  Hard copies of the menus are issued to the Schools for mailing to parents 
with electronic copies provided for the websites.

Michael Parker who had been appointed as Chef for Oulder Hill left the company and 
Amanda Holmes-Layton, Chef at Redwood, was appointed in his place.  Charlotte Whittaker 
had been appointed as a Catering Assistant at Springside with Hamer Learning Community , 
she is a qualified Chef and transferred to the Chef’s vacancy at Redwood.

Page 94



-4-
Rochdale Schools Annual Service Report 2015-2016

Over the summer period the vending machines at Oulder Hill School were removed and 
replaced with a new Pasta Station, which is already proving incredibly popular.

We have implemented a new cashless catering system.

The table and graphs below show the uptake for School meals both for staff and students.

Page 95



-5-
Rochdale Schools Annual Service Report 2015-2016

Graph 2: Primary School Meal Uptake – Pupils

P
age 96



-6-
Rochdale Schools Annual Service Report 2015-2016

Graph 3: Secondary School Meal Uptake - Pupils

P
age 97



-7-
Rochdale Schools Annual Service Report 2015-2016

Graph 4: School Meal Uptake - Staff

P
age 98



-8-
Rochdale Schools Annual Service Report 2015-2016

d) Grounds

The grounds continue to be maintained by Ash Garden Maintenance, and specific requests 
from Schools have been accommodated.  The exact details on this have been identified in 
the Service Delivery Plans.

A large amount of work has been undertaken around the sites with regards to planting, 
there is still capacity to put in further plants if required however the recent ones need time 
to establish before this can be done.  Path edges at Marland Hill have been repaired under 
Lifecycle.

The field at Hollin and the top field at Oulder Hill have both had work completed to allow 
them to be used on a more regular basis (the drainage on the Oulder Hill field has always 
been particularly bad and as a result this particular element is derogated out of the 
contract).

e) Helpdesk

The Helpdesk has performed well in the period.  In the table below ‘Rochdale’ represents 
Hamer, Hollin, Marland, Newlands, Springsideand M6 Theatre.  ‘Oulder’ is OHLC, Redwood, 
Oulder Hill School and Gracie Fields Theatre.

Below is the service performance schedule that represents the priorities within the 
Helpdesk.

Page 99



-9-
Rochdale Schools Annual Service Report 2015-2016

Rochdale received in total1,701 separate calls to the Helpdesk and Oulder 2,313.  In 
graphstwo and four respectivelythey have been separated by category ROC1 to ROC5.  
Graphssix and eightshow the percentage of attendance and resolved within the required 
limits set out above.  ROC5 calls will show as zero as these are one off failures and therefore 
cannot be resolved.

Following an extended period of sickness absence, Elizabeth Tetlow, Helpdesk Manager, 
took early retirement, Sandra Hodgkinson covered the position in the interim and Jodie 
Waddicor was successful in securing the position permanently. The transition between staff 
has been smooth.  The Helpdesk answers calls within three rings.

Graph ninerepresents the average percentage of calls that were attended and resolved with 
the set required times across all priorities.

Page 100



-10-
Rochdale Schools Annual Service Report 2015-2016

Graph5:- Helpdesk Calls for Rochdale by R1 to R5 Code

Graph6:- Helpdesk Calls for Rochdale Attended and Resolved Percentage

Page 101



-11-
Rochdale Schools Annual Service Report 2015-2016

Graph7:- Helpdesk Calls for Oulder by R1 to R5 Code

Graph8 :- Helpdesk Calls for Rochdale Attended and Resolved Percentage

Page 102



-12-
Rochdale Schools Annual Service Report 2015-2016

Graph9:- Average Attended and Resolved Percentage

f) Security

There were no break-ins during September 2015-August 2016.

g) Authority Damage & Vandalism

The following incidents of Authority Damage and Vandalism incurred recharges:-

Page 103



-13-
Rochdale Schools Annual Service Report 2015-2016Page 104



-14-
Rochdale Schools Annual Service Report 2015-2016

3. Payment Mechanism

The Paymech meeting takes place monthly and is attended by GFM and RMBC.  Axiom 
representatives are invited to attend if there are any arbitration requirements.

The deductions for the period September 2015 to August 2016 total £10,234.03 with 
£5,295.07 being for unavailability, £4,938.96 for performance and £535.20 for reporting 
failures.

Page 105



-15-
Rochdale Schools Annual Service Report 2015-2016

Graph 10: Performance v Availability Split

Graph 11: Financial Deductions per School

Page 106



-16-
Rochdale Schools Annual Service Report 2015-2016

Unavailable Sessions by Month and School

4. Variations and Lifecycle

There have been a number of variations completed across the Rochdale Schools estate.

For reference, the agreed process can be found in the Head Teachers Operational Manual.

The table below represents the number of variations that have taken place and their value.

Page 107



-17-
Rochdale Schools Annual Service Report 2015-2016

High Value Projects

The highest value projects for each site consisted of:-

 Hamer Installation of noticeboards replacing existing boards that are 
difficult to change

 Hollin To install an iBoard Touch to the wall and protect in timber casing
 Hollin & Newlands Installation of car park barriers to entrance and exit gates
 Marland Hill Remodelling of the Nursery/Foundation and HI areas and classroom
 Newlands Power and data as applicable with associated works for a projector 

to be fitted by School to Small Hall
 Oulder Hill Install additional MUGA fencing incorporating football and basketball 

posts
 Redwood Install metal cupboards to area adjacent to the Redwood Hall exit 

door into the Street
 Springside Telephone and computer network point

Low Value Projects

Several nil cost variations were undertaken therefore the lowest cost for the valuations at 
these sites is shown as zero.

Graph 12: Variation Spend

Page 108



-18-
Rochdale Schools Annual Service Report 2015-2016

Lifecycle

The table below represents the number of lifecycle works that have taken place and their 
value.

The highest value projects at each site consisted of:-

 Hamer/Springside Removal and replacement of the hydrotherapy pool top
 Hollin/Newlands replace sheet carpet with carpet tiles in various rooms
 Marland Replace UPVC partition and doors
 Oulder Hill Replace timber gym floor which is over 25 years old
 Redwood Inject epoxy resin in to breach in sewerage tank

Page 109



-19-
Rochdale Schools Annual Service Report 2015-2016

Graph 13:  Lifecycle Spend

5. Utilities and Energy

The utility and energy figures issued in the monthly report are provided by Anthony Creasey, 
Energy Manager for GFM, the previously agreed format was retained for the benefit of the 
Schools.  The data provided is based on the monthly meter readings and therefore is up to 
date for the month.

The table below shows the energy and water consumption and percentage against target.  
The end of year reconciliation is undertaken at the start of the new School year and will look 
at the reasons for differences in consumption that are +/-10% before final costs are agreed.

Page 110



-20-
Rochdale Schools Annual Service Report 2015-2016Page 111



-21-
Rochdale Schools Annual Service Report 2015-2016

A copy of the Annual Energy Reports issued by Anthony Creasey, GFM’s Energy Manager, are 
attached as Appendix G.

6. Health and Safety

GFM appointed a new H&S Manager, Olan Adebayo.

The Annual H&S meeting was held at Oulder Hill during August 2016, no issues were 
identified.

RMBC continue to complete their audits and aGFM management representative is present.

There were no H&S breaches during the period.

Redwood School received a telephone call which was part of several incidents around the 
Country that there was a bomb on the premises.  The Site Supervisors from both Schools, 
Luke Elward (Redwood) and Steve Welsh (Oulder Hill), along with Karl Cockram (Redwood 
Caretaker) provided substantial assistance to the Police in searching the roofs of the 
buildings.  Although the evacuation of both Schools was successful, a review of the 
procedures was undertaken between the School Heads and involving GFM.

Please see Appendix A for accidents and incidents that have occurred during the period.

7. GFM Management

There have been changes in the structure of GFM and the site based teams, primarily:-

Leavers

 Glenn Proffitt Health & Safety Manager

Page 112



-22-
Rochdale Schools Annual Service Report 2015-2016

 Freddie Fay Site Supervisor, Springside with Hamer Learning Community
 Daniel Brophy Site Supervisor, Springside with Hamer Learning Community
 Michael Parker Chef Manager, Oulder Hill

Internal Changes

 Amanda Holmes-Layton moved from Chef at Redwood to replace Michael Parker at 
Oulder Hill

Starters

 Olan Adebayo Health & Safety Manager
 Paul Shepherd Site Supervisor, Springside with Hamer Learning Community
 Derek Warren Caretaker, Springside with Hamer Learning Community
 Charlotte Whittaker Chef, Redwood

8. Service Delivery Improvements

Rochdale Schools was audited and GFM retained ISO:9001 status during the period.

A number of new contractors and suppliers have been added to GFM’s approved list at the 
request of the Schools, in particular YPO and Hetheringtons.

9. Customer Satisfaction Survey

In line with Clause 39.2a of the PA the annual Customer Satisfaction Survey was carried out 
and results were as follows:-

Page 113



-23-
Rochdale Schools Annual Service Report 2015-2016Page 114



-24-
Rochdale Schools Annual Service Report 2015-2016Page 115



-25-
Rochdale Schools Annual Service Report 2015-2016

APPENDIX

Page 116



-26-
Rochdale Schools Annual Service Report 2015-2016

Appendix A: Incident and Accident Report

P
age 117



-27-
Rochdale Schools Annual Service Report 2015-2016

Appendix B: GFM Rochdale Schools Structure

P
age 118



-28-
Rochdale Schools Annual Service Report 2015-2016

APPENDIX C:  Annual Maintenance Plan – Issued under separate cover

P
age 119



-29-
Rochdale Schools Annual Service Report 2015-2016

Appendix D: Compliments and Complaints

Complaints Received

Page 120



-30-
Rochdale Schools Annual Service Report 2015-2016

Compliments Received

Page 121



-31-
Rochdale Schools Annual Service Report 2015-2016

Appendix E: List of GFM Contractors 

Page 122



-32-
Rochdale Schools Annual Service Report 2015-2016Page 123



-33-
Rochdale Schools Annual Service Report 2015-2016Page 124



-34-
Rochdale Schools Annual Service Report 2015-2016

APPENDIX F: Lifecycle - Issued under separate cover

Page 125



-35-
Rochdale Schools Annual Service Report 2015-2016

APPENDIX G – Annual Energy Summaries September 2015-August 2016

Hamer Community Primary School

 Over Door Air Curtain

As mentioned in the previous Annual Energy Summary, it has been noted that electricity usage has 
increased since the installation of the over door air curtain above the entrance to the Reception. 
Visits to the school have determined that this air curtain is being used as a heat source, as it is 
constantly running during the winter months, not just when the door beneath is open. GFM have 
been looking into how to resolve this issue, and there are two viable options. The first is to remove 
the air curtain; however this will allow hot air to escape when the reception door is open. The 
second option is to install a micro-switch that will allow the air curtain to run only when the 
reception door is open. The micro-switch would have to be linked to the BMS system, in order to be 
controlled by the BMS interface. In an update in May 2015, an investigation by GFM into the 
potential of installing a micro-switch determined that the Air Curtain can take up to 15 minutes to 
produce warm air, which is the primary reason for it to be left on constantly. GFM have attempted 
to contact the manufacturer of the Air Curtain in order to determine whether the installation is 
working correctly and whether a micro-switch is compatible, but did not receive a response. 

A thorough investigation of the BMS system with a Matrix Controls Engineer was undertaken in May 
2015. As mentioned above, it had previously been stated that the sensor directly below the Air 
Curtain was directly linked to the BMS and would hold off the heating due to warm air produced by 
the Air Curtain. The investigation determined that the  “sensor” was not connected to the BMS, and 
in fact was a thermostat for the radiator on the reception wall. It was also determined that the 
heating is only held off when the room is at the correct temperature of 21 degrees.

In an update to this, it has since been noted that the Air Curtain is no longer being used as a heat 
source, and is now being used as designed.

Water Meter

As per the last Energy Summary, GFM have been in discussions with United Utilities to install an 
AMR (Automatic Meter Reading) water meter on site. This style of meter records readings on either 
a 15 minute, half-hourly or hourly basis. This extra detailed information will allow for a greater 
overview of daily, weekly and monthly site consumption, and can also be used as a leak detection 
tool when consumption suddenly and rapidly increases. United Utilities state that the current meter 
is not due for lifecycle replacement for another three years. Due to changes to Account Managers at 
United Utilities there have been further discussions on this matter to determine whether United 
Utilities can bring the meter replacement forward.

Page 126



-36-
Rochdale Schools Annual Service Report 2015-2016

BMS

During the Spring of the past year, at the request of the RMBC, GFM made some significant changes 
to how the BMS system operates during the summer. Previously, a member of GFM staff would have 
to manually switch the system to “Summer Mode” when the external temperatures were warm 
enough to not require heating – however this method led the schools to be susceptible to 
overconsumption due to delays in switching to the Summer Mode. The process of switching to 
Summer Mode has now been automated, meaning that the system will run based on external 
temperatures – which in turn reduces an unnecessary consumption.

Hollin Primary School

  
Over Door Air Curtain

As mentioned in the previous Annual Energy Summary, it has been noted that electricity usage has 
increased since the installation of the over door air curtain above the entrance to the Reception. 
Visits to the school have determined that this air curtain is being used as a heat source, as it is 
constantly running during the winter months, not just when the door beneath is open. GFM have 
been looking into how to resolve this issue, and there are two viable options. The first is to remove 
the air curtain; however this will allow hot air to escape when the reception door is open. The 
second option is to install a micro-switch that will allow the air curtain to run only when the 
reception door is open. The micro-switch would have to be linked to the BMS system, in order to be 
controlled by the BMS interface. In an update in May 2015, an investigation by GFM into the 
potential of installing a micro-switch determined that the Air Curtain can take up to 15 minutes to 
produce warm air, which is the primary reason for it to be left on constantly. GFM have attempted 
to contact the manufacturer of the Air Curtain in order to determine whether the installation is 
working correctly and whether a micro-switch is compatible, but did not receive a response. 

In an update to this, it has since been noted that the Air Curtain is no longer being used as a heat 
source, and is now being used as designed.

BMS and Sensors

As reported in the 2013-14 Annual Energy Summary there appeared to be an apparent shortage of 
temperature sensors.  This was because when the sensor recorded a temperature set point, it could 
force the BMS system into shutting heating off, or turning heating on, depending on the time of 
year. This can have a knock on effect on other areas of the school where the set temperature has yet 
to be reached but the heating is controlled by the previous sensor.  GFM did investigate as to 
whether more sensors were required, or if the relocation of the existing sensors would be sufficient, 
determining that although the sensor relocation would improve the buildings efficiency, the 
introduction of more sensors would allow for greater control. 

Page 127



-37-
Rochdale Schools Annual Service Report 2015-2016

In an update in May 2015, GFM had Matrix Controls on site to provide quotations for the additional 
sensors. The Matrix engineer determined that it is not currently possible to install extra sensors, due 
to the BMS system not having any spare output space in its control panel. In order to create space, 
GFM were advised that an upgrade of the control panel and a number of outstations would be 
required, at a significant cost. The engineer also noted that in their opinion, there were a sufficient 
number of sensors, and that the current sensor locations were sufficient.

GFM monitor the BMS system ensuring equipment is managed in the most efficient way possibly to 
meet contractual requirements. Within the lifecycle plan, submitted last year, the BMS system has 
been identified in the 2016-2017 lifecycle year for the replacement of the head end PC, software 
updates and replacement of main control units, when we carry out such works we are always 
looking to ensure we incorporate best practice relating to energy conservation within the confines of 
lifecycle direct like for like replacement.

During the Spring of the past year, at the request of the RMBC, GFM made some significant changes 
to how the BMS system operates during the summer. Previously, a member of GFM staff would have 
to manually switch the system to “Summer Mode” when the external temperatures were warm 
enough to not require heating – however this method led the schools to be susceptible to 
overconsumption due to delays in switching to the Summer Mode. The process of switching to 
Summer Mode has now been automated, meaning that the system will run based on external 
temperatures – which in turn reduces an unnecessary consumption.

Water Meter

As per the last Energy Summary, GFM have been in discussions with United Utilities to install an 
AMR (Automatic Meter Reading) water meter on site. This style of meter records readings on either 
a 15 minute, half-hourly or hourly basis. This extra detailed information will allow for a greater 
overview of daily, weekly and monthly site consumption, and can also be used as a leak detection 
tool when consumption suddenly and rapidly increases. United Utilities state that the current meter 
is not due for lifecycle replacement for another three years. Due to changes to Account Managers at 
United Utilities there have been further discussions on this matter to determine whether United 
Utilities can bring the meter replacement forward.

Extension

In the 2014-15 year, the extension of Hollin was built. GFM produced utilities consumption estimates 
for this extension, based on architects information, weather correction data as well as any 
efficiencies when compared to the original school. These estimates were included in the 2015-16 
targets. Due to the extension having its own sub-metering it was possible to determine the annual 
consumption, and these actual figures based on readings were used as part of the 2016/17 target 
setting process.

Page 128



-38-
Rochdale Schools Annual Service Report 2015-2016

M6 Theatre

  
BMS Upgrade

During the summer of 2014, the BMS control panel and system on site were upgraded. This was due 
to the original system becoming susceptible to partial corruption during power outages, which 
would control of the system difficult. The panel was upgraded to a more hardy system, which is 
significantly less likely to corrupt due to power outages. 

It had been observed that gas consumption on site had significantly increased since the installation 
of the upgraded BMS system. Matrix Controls were requested to attend site to determine whether 
there was an issue with the system, such as a misreading or un-calibrated sensor etc. The engineer 
tested the system and confirmed that it was running to the commissioned specifications, and that 
there were no faults in the software to cause increased consumption. Investigations through-out the 
year found no faults and it was later determined, with the use of Display Energy Certificate data for 
the Theatre, that the M6 – even with the increased consumption – was performing far better than a 
Theatre of its should. As a result it was proposed to the RMBC that the original BMS install had never 
worked as intended, and that the current install is working to required specifications.

Sensors and Zoning

It had been requested for GFM to investigate the possibility of installing additional sensors and to 
increase the number of zones on site. Matrix Controls were called to site to determine the number 
of zones currently in place. The following were found:

 Foyer (Monday-Friday 9am to 5.30pm)

 Office (Monday-Friday 9am to 6pm)

 Work Shop (Monday-Friday 9am to 6pm)

 Electric Store (Monday to Friday 9am to 3pm)

 Green Room (Monday to Friday 9am to 6pm)

 Costume Room (Monday to Friday 9am to 4pm)

 AHU (Monday to Friday 9am to 6pm).

It was noted that due to the system on site and the number of zones already in place, it would not 
be possible to add any additional zones. Additionally, it was determined that an increased number of 
sensors on site would have little effect on improving control over the site.

Page 129



-39-
Rochdale Schools Annual Service Report 2015-2016

Water Meter

As per the last Energy Summary, GFM have been in discussions with United Utilities to install an 
AMR (Automatic Meter Reading) water meter on site. This style of meter records readings on either 
a 15 minute, half-hourly or hourly basis. This extra detailed information will allow for a greater 
overview of daily, weekly and monthly site consumption, and can also be used as a leak detection 
tool when consumption suddenly and rapidly increases. United Utilities state that the current meter 
is not due for lifecycle replacement for another three years. Due to changes to Account Managers at 
United Utilities there have been further discussions on this matter to determine whether United 
Utilities can bring the meter replacement forward.

Marland Hill Community Primary School

BMS, Zoning and Sensors

As reported in both the 2013-14 and 2014-15 Annual Energy Summaries, the BMS system at Marland 
Hill only has three heating/cooling zones; these being “Staff”, “Teaching” and “Hall + Music/Drama”. 
As stated previously, three zones are clearly insufficient to run a school efficiently. Additionally, also 
mentioned in the previous Annual Energy Summary, it has been noted that the school would be best 
suited to having more temperature sensors. This is because at the moment, when the sensor records 
a temperature set point, it can force the BMS system into shutting heating off, or turning heating on, 
depending on the time of year. This can have a knock on effect on other areas of the school where 
the set temperature has yet to be reached but the heating is controlled by the previous sensor. GFM 
monitor the BMS system ensuring equipment is managed in the most efficient way possibly to meet 
contractual requirements. Within the recently submitted lifecycle plan the BMS system has been 
identified in the 2016-2017 lifecycle year for the replacement of the head end PC, software updates 
and replacement of main control units, when we carry out such works we are always looking to 
ensure we incorporate best practice relating to energy conservation within the confines of lifecycle 
direct like for like replacement.

In May 2015, GFM had Matrix Controls on site to provide quotations for the additional sensors. The 
Matrix engineer determined that due to the heating system lay-out of the school, it was impossible 
to add in extra zoning, without first having significant works carried out on the heating system. The 
engineer also advised that any additional sensors to the system would have a negligible if any effect 
on the BMS system due to the heating system lay-out. The engineer was, however, able to quote for 
the addition of a time zone to the “Staff” area, meaning that this area would no longer use the 
“Teaching” time zone. These works were raised and completed in June 2015.

In an update to the above, Matrix Controls made significant changes to the BMS strategy in an 
attempt to reduce the “cold” areas around the school where low temperatures were recorded.

During the Spring of the past year, at the request of the RMBC, GFM made some significant changes 
to how the BMS system operates during the summer. Previously, a member of GFM staff would have 
to manually switch the system to “Summer Mode” when the external temperatures were warm 

Page 130



-40-
Rochdale Schools Annual Service Report 2015-2016

enough to not require heating – however this method led the schools to be susceptible to 
overconsumption due to delays in switching to the Summer Mode. The process of switching to 
Summer Mode has now been automated, meaning that the system will run based on external 
temperatures – which in turn reduces an unnecessary consumption.

Water Meter

As per the last Energy Summary, GFM have been in discussions with United Utilities to install an 
AMR (Automatic Meter Reading) water meter on site. This style of meter records readings on either 
a 15 minute, half-hourly or hourly basis. This extra detailed information will allow for a greater 
overview of daily, weekly and monthly site consumption, and can also be used as a leak detection 
tool when consumption suddenly and rapidly increases. United Utilities state that the current meter 
is not due for lifecycle replacement for another three years. Due to changes to Account Managers at 
United Utilities there have been further discussions on this matter to determine whether United 
Utilities can bring the meter replacement forward.

Newlands School

Over Door Air Curtain

As mentioned in the previous Annual Energy Summary, it has been noted that electricity usage has 
increased since the installation of the over door air curtain above the entrance to the Reception. 
Visits to the school have determined that this air curtain is being used as a heat source, as it is 
constantly running during the winter months, not just when the door beneath is open. GFM have 
been looking into how to resolve this issue, and there are two viable options. The first is to remove 
the air curtain; however this will allow hot air to escape when the reception door is open. The 
second option is to install a micro-switch that will allow the air curtain to run only when the 
reception door is open. The micro-switch would have to be linked to the BMS system, in order to be 
controlled by the BMS interface. In an update in May 2015, an investigation by GFM into the 
potential of installing a micro-switch determined that the Air Curtain can take up to 15 minutes to 
produce warm air, which is the primary reason for it to be left on constantly. GFM have attempted 
to contact the manufacturer of the Air Curtain in order to determine whether the installation is 
working correctly and whether a micro-switch is compatible, but did not receive a response. 

In an update to this, it has since been noted that the Air Curtain is no longer being used as a heat 
source, and is now being used as designed.

BMS and Sensors

As reported in the 2013-14 Annual Energy Summary there appeared to be an apparent shortage of 
temperature sensors.  This was because when the sensor recorded a temperature set point, it could 
force the BMS system into shutting heating off, or turning heating on, depending on the time of 
year. This can have a knock on effect on other areas of the school where the set temperature has yet 
to be reached but the heating is controlled by the previous sensor.  GFM did investigate as to 

Page 131



-41-
Rochdale Schools Annual Service Report 2015-2016

whether more sensors were required, or if the relocation of the existing sensors would be sufficient, 
determining that although the sensor relocation would improve the buildings efficiency, the 
introduction of more sensors would allow for greater control. 

In an update in May 2015, GFM had Matrix Controls on site to provide quotations for the additional 
sensors. The Matrix engineer determined that it is not currently possible to install extra sensors, due 
to the BMS system not having any spare output space in its control panel. In order to create space, 
GFM were advised that an upgrade of the control panel and a number of outstations would be 
required, at a significant cost. The engineer also noted that in their opinion, there were a sufficient 
number of sensors, and that the current sensor locations were sufficient.

GFM monitor the BMS system ensuring equipment is managed in the most efficient way possibly to 
meet contractual requirements. Within the lifecycle plan, submitted last year, the BMS system has 
been identified in the 2016-2017 lifecycle year for the replacement of the head end PC, software 
updates and replacement of main control units, when we carry out such works we are always 
looking to ensure we incorporate best practice relating to energy conservation within the confines of 
lifecycle direct like for like replacement.

During the Spring of the past year, at the request of the RMBC, GFM made some significant changes 
to how the BMS system operates during the summer. Previously, a member of GFM staff would have 
to manually switch the system to “Summer Mode” when the external temperatures were warm 
enough to not require heating – however this method led the schools to be susceptible to 
overconsumption due to delays in switching to the Summer Mode. The process of switching to 
Summer Mode has now been automated, meaning that the system will run based on external 
temperatures – which in turn reduces an unnecessary consumption.

Water Meter

As per the last Energy Summary, GFM have been in discussions with United Utilities to install an 
AMR (Automatic Meter Reading) water meter on site. This style of meter records readings on either 
a 15 minute, half-hourly or hourly basis. This extra detailed information will allow for a greater 
overview of daily, weekly and monthly site consumption, and can also be used as a leak detection 
tool when consumption suddenly and rapidly increases. United Utilities state that the current meter 
is not due for lifecycle replacement for another three years. Due to changes to Account Managers at 
United Utilities there have been further discussions on this matter to determine whether United 
Utilities can bring the meter replacement forward.

Hollin Extension

In the 2014-15 year, the extension of Hollin was built. GFM produced utilities consumption estimates 
for this extension, based on architects information, weather correction data as well as any 
efficiencies when compared to the original school. These estimates were included in the 2015-16 
targets. Due to the extension having its own sub-metering it was possible to determine the annual 
consumption, and these actual figures, based on readings, were used as part of the 2016/17 target 

Page 132



-42-
Rochdale Schools Annual Service Report 2015-2016

setting process – any consumption from the extension was completely removed from Newlands 
targets.

Oulder Hill Community School

LED lighting

As detailed in the 2014-15 Annual Energy Summary, due to the age of the lighting equipment in the 
Gracie Fields Theatre, and in order to reduce the chances of breakdown and subsequent 
unavailability, GFM staff would manage the Theatre lighting, with only a few banks of lights on at a 
time. This meant that 100% of the lighting was very rarely, if ever, on. This lighting, consisting of 75 
300watt flush ceiling lights, was replaced in the summer of 2014, with 40watt LED panels. Since the 
LED lighting has been installed, GFM no longer have to manage the equipment to reduce 
breakdown, and as such 100% of the lighting can now be used. This will allow for better cleaning and 
any building damages picked up more quickly, as well as improved visibility both before and after 
performances. The change in lighting did not result in an efficiency when setting the energy targets 
for the 2014-15 year, as it was nigh-on impossible to calculate the said efficiency, due to the fact 
that that any calculation would have been purely based on rough estimations and assumptions on 
the percentage of flush ceiling lights being on at any one time. 

During the summer of 2014, the first floor corridor lighting was also replaced.  The original lighting, 
which consisted of 25 fluorescent 4x18watt T5 light fittings, was replaced with 25 42watt LED panel 
fittings. As with the LED lighting in the Theatre, no efficiency was made to the 2014-15 utilities 
targets, due to the fact that any figure calculated would be based purely on the assumption of the 
number of hours the lighting would be on per day.

For the 2016-17 year, GFM intend to carry out a full lighting survey of the school to determine the 
energy savings should all existing lighting be replaced and put forward project proposals to the 
RMBC detailing initial costs of installation, utility and cost savings and the pay-back time. If these 
projects are approved then GFM will look to add these to current lifecycle plans.

BMS, Zoning and Sensors

As detailed in both the 2013-14 and 2014-15 Annual Energy Summaries, there are issues with some 
areas of the school, where numerous levels of the school are controlled by only one valve, meaning 
there that is less control over each floor than would be recommended.  Also, it has been noted that 
the system could be better controlled with the addition of more sensors, as well as the relocation of 
already existing sensors. GFM monitor the BMS system ensuring equipment is managed in the most 
efficient way possibly to meet contractual requirements. Within the lifecycle plan, submitted last 
year, the BMS system has been identified in the 2016-2017 lifecycle year for the replacement of the 
head end PC, software updates and replacement of main control units, when we carry out such 

Page 133



-43-
Rochdale Schools Annual Service Report 2015-2016

works we are always looking to ensure we incorporate best practice relating to energy conservation 
within the confines of lifecycle direct like for like replacement.

During the Spring of the past year, at the request of the RMBC, GFM made some significant changes 
to how the BMS system operates during the summer. Previously, a member of GFM staff would have 
to manually switch the system to “Summer Mode” when the external temperatures were warm 
enough to not require heating – however this method led the schools to be susceptible to 
overconsumption due to delays in switching to the Summer Mode. The process of switching to 
Summer Mode has now been automated, meaning that the system will run based on external 
temperatures – which in turn reduces an unnecessary consumption.

Water Meter

As stated in the 2014-15 Annual Energy Summary, between the 4th July and 1st August 2014, the 
fiscal water meter, owned by United Utilities, froze on a reading of 203465, with no additional 
consumption recorded until the 2nd August. GFM contacted United Utilities regarding this, and 
requested an engineer to attend site to determine whether there was a quick-fix available, or that 
the meter required replacing.  When the meter began recording consumption again, United Utilities 
then stated that the meter was actually running correctly, and that zero consumption over the 
school summer holidays was expected. Bearing in mind that the water consumed by Redwood 
School passes through this meter, and that the Hydropool was at the time leaking, GFM determined 
United Utilities statement that the meter was recording correctly as false. The water meter was 
replaced on the 23rd March 2015, with the current meter being an AMR (Automatic Meter Reading) 
meter, which has the capability to record readings on either a 15 minute, half-hourly or hourly basis. 

As stated in the previous Energy Summary, there had been noticeable increases and decreases in 
water consumption throughout the site over the past few years. Leak detection investigations had 
been carried out, all coming back with negative results. Up until August 2014, water consumption by 
both Oulder Hill and Redwood was split based on floor area of both sites, due to a lack of sub-
metering. From August 2014, there has been sub-metering in place, however due to the Redwood 
Hydropool leaking, it wasn’t possible to treat the consumption between August 2014 and September 
2015 as accurate, which may have explained the dramatic difference in consumption in recent years. 
Since the Hydropool was been repaired back in early 2015, water consumption at Oulder Hill has 
reached a steady and consistent state. 

Impero Classroom Management Software

As stated in both the previous 2013-14 and 2014-15 Annual Energy Summaries, Impero Classroom 
Management Software was installed at the school during the summer of 2013. Both GFM and RMBC 
were approached by Impero regarding the initialisation of the power management function of this 
software, which would automatically power on and off computers and other electronic equipment 
as and when required, as well as detecting idle machines and subsequently powering them down. 
The power management function would require a pilot period of approximately six months, where 
real-time consumption data would be recorded, and at the end of this data-collection period, Impero 
would produce a detailed report into their findings and determine how best to initiate the power 

Page 134



-44-
Rochdale Schools Annual Service Report 2015-2016

management function. To date, this function has yet to be used. A business case from Impero that 
was distributed to RMBC back in 2014 estimated a saving of £20,000 on annual electricity 
consumption if the software was initiated. Since the departure from the RMBC of Barnaby Fryer, the 
Authority’s lead on Sustainability, this project has become stagnant – however it is the intention of 
GFM begin investigating the use of this software again.

Redwood Secondary School

Water Meter Installation

As mentioned in both the 2013-14 and 2014-15 Annual Energy Summaries, previously Redwoods 
water consumption was based on Oulder Hills fiscal meter readings, and apportioned based on the 
floor areas of both schools. However, in August 2013, a sub-meter was installed to allow for accurate 
water consumption data to be collected for Redwood. It was immediately noted that the actual 
consumption was significantly higher than the apportioned usage, meaning that the historical 
calculations did not give a true reflection of Redwoods consumption. It was expected that the first 
years’ worth of meter readings for Redwood would give a true indication of the schools’ 
consumption; however, the leak in the Hydropool put paid to this. Because of the leak, water 
consumption increased significantly in the latter part of the year to compensate for the leak, and to 
avoid any pool unavailability, until the decision was made to close the pool in August. In order to 
improve the knowledge of water consumption on site, and to be aware of any pool leak more 
quickly, a new sub-meter was installed on the 28th December 2014 and records all water supplied 
from the make-up tank to the balance tank.

Since the Hydropool was repaired, monthly consumption of site has remained consistent. 

BMS

During the Spring of the past year, at the request of the RMBC, GFM made some significant changes 
to how the BMS system operates during the summer. Previously, a member of GFM staff would have 
to manually switch the system to “Summer Mode” when the external temperatures were warm 
enough to not require heating – however this method led the schools to be susceptible to 
overconsumption due to delays in switching to the Summer Mode. The process of switching to 
Summer Mode has now been automated, meaning that the system will run based on external 
temperatures – which in turn reduces an unnecessary consumption.

LED Lighting

For the 2016-17 year, GFM intend to carry out a full lighting survey of the school to determine the 
energy savings should all existing lighting be replaced and put forward project proposals to the 
RMBC detailing initial costs of installation, utility and cost savings and the pay-back time. If these 
projects are approved, then GFM will look to add these to current lifecycle plans.

Page 135



-45-
Rochdale Schools Annual Service Report 2015-2016

Redwood Extension

During the building of the Redwood Extension, there will be a temporary classroom on site. This 
classroom will be sub-metered, and all usage will be removed from the sites consumption as well as 
the following years targets.

Springside School

Over Door Air Curtain

As mentioned in the previous Annual Energy Summary, it has been noted that electricity usage has 
increased since the installation of the over door air curtain above the entrance to the Reception. 
Visits to the school have determined that this air curtain is being used as a heat source, as it is 
constantly running during the winter months, not just when the door beneath is open. GFM have 
been looking into how to resolve this issue, and there are two viable options. The first is to remove 
the air curtain; however this will allow hot air to escape when the reception door is open. The 
second option is to install a micro-switch that will allow the air curtain to run only when the 
reception door is open. The micro-switch would have to be linked to the BMS system, in order to be 
controlled by the BMS interface. In an update in May 2015, an investigation by GFM into the 
potential of installing a micro-switch determined that the Air Curtain can take up to 15 minutes to 
produce warm air, which is the primary reason for it to be left on constantly. GFM have attempted 
to contact the manufacturer of the Air Curtain in order to determine whether the installation is 
working correctly and whether a micro-switch is compatible, but did not receive a response. 

A thorough investigation of the BMS system with a Matrix Controls Engineer was undertaken in May 
2015. As mentioned above, it had previously been stated that the sensor directly below the Air 
Curtain was directly linked to the BMS and would hold off the heating due to warm air produced by 
the Air Curtain. The investigation determined that the  “sensor” was not connected to the BMS, and 
in fact was a thermostat for the radiator on the reception wall. It was also determined that the 
heating is only held off when the room is at the correct temperature of 21 degrees.

In an update to this, it has since been noted that the Air Curtain is no longer being used as a heat 
source, and is now being used as designed.

Water Meter

As per the last Energy Summary, GFM have been in discussions with United Utilities to install an 
AMR (Automatic Meter Reading) water meter on site. This style of meter records readings on either 
a 15 minute, half-hourly or hourly basis. This extra detailed information will allow for a greater 
overview of daily, weekly and monthly site consumption, and can also be used as a leak detection 
tool when consumption suddenly and rapidly increases. United Utilities state that the current meter 
is not due for lifecycle replacement for another three years. Due to changes to Account Managers at 
United Utilities there have been further discussions on this matter to determine whether United 
Utilities can bring the meter replacement forward.

Page 136



-46-
Rochdale Schools Annual Service Report 2015-2016

BMS

During the Spring of the past year, at the request of the RMBC, GFM made some significant changes 
to how the BMS system operates during the summer. Previously, a member of GFM staff would have 
to manually switch the system to “Summer Mode” when the external temperatures were warm 
enough to not require heating – however this method led the schools to be susceptible to 
overconsumption due to delays in switching to the Summer Mode. The process of switching to 
Summer Mode has now been automated, meaning that the system will run based on external 
temperatures – which in turn reduces an unnecessary consumption. 

Page 137



Title: Oral Health Improvement Strategy Study 
Group

Status: For Publication

Report to: Health, Schools and Care Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee

Cabinet Member: Portfolio Holder for Public 
Health and Wellbeing - Councillor Janet Emsley 

Report of: Oral Health Improvement Strategy 
Scrutiny Study Group

Report Author: Peter Thompson

Date:   21st February 2017

Author Tel:     01706 924715  

Author Email:    peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk  Key Decision: No

1. Purpose of Report
1.1 To present the report of the Oral Health Improvement Strategy Group and to 

recommend its submission to the Cabinet.

2. Recommendations

It is recommended that the Health, Schools and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
approve the following recommendations and where appropriate refer them to the Cabinet for 
their approval and adoption:-

2.1 The Council be recommended to approve and adopt the Oral Health Strategy, 
commissioned by Public Health England and entitled “Local Authorities improving oral 
health: commissioning better oral health for children and young people”; 

2.2t that work by the Oral Health Promotion Officer, with regard to the suitability and 
appropriateness of oral health initiatives that local Mosques were undertaking, 
particularly those Mosques that are located in the Milkstone and Deeplish and Central 
Rochdale Wards of the Borough be noted; 

2.3 That elected Members of Rochdale Borough Council be encouraged to continue to 
attend meetings of the Greater Manchester Oral Health Improvement Collaborative 
Commissioners meeting, following Councillor Sullivan’s example in this regard;

2.4 The Director of Children’s Services be requested to continue to encourage relevant 
staff to undertake available training in oral health care;

2.5 The Council’s Director of Public Health and the Portfolio Holder for Public Health and 
Wellbeing be requested to continue to lobby to have prominence of oral health within 
the Borough’s Locality Plan;

Page 138

Agenda Item 7

mailto:peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk


2.6 The results and outcomes of the national survey into the oral health of five year old 
children, published (by Public Health England) in May 2016, be noted;

2.7 The Oral Health Promotions Officer, in consultation with appropriate external providers 
continue to liaise with local General Dental Practices to explain the various tooth 
brushing programmes that are available for pupils, and that the Oral Health 
Promotions Officer also be requested to continue to liaise with representatives of 
appropriate providers to examine ways of increasing the number of schools in the 
Borough that are engaged in Tooth Brushing Programmes and that staff in the 
Council’s Public Health Directorate be requested to undertake ‘mapping’ exercises to 
identify the locations of dental practices in the Borough that are engaged in the various 
tooth brushing programmes;

2.8 The Director of Children’s Services be requested to continue with the provision of 
suitable training and guidance for those with guardianship responsibilities for ‘looked 
after children’, foster carers and prospective adoptive parents in terms of oral hygiene 
and food hygiene, and in this regard the Council’s Public Health Service be requested 
to review the current policies of the Council;

2.9 The Public Health Directorate continue to examine the Borough’s obesity figures (as 
an indicator of likely sugar intake and potential dental caries) for Primary schools 
falling within the existing secondary school hot food takeaway ‘exclusion zones and 
the Public Health Directorate’s Licencing team continue to ‘map out’ routes of mobile 
food vendors (in particular ice cream vans), with a view to considering restrictions of 
trade within a given perimeter of primary schools, further noting that a report will be 
submitted to Planning and Licensing Committee in due course requesting that the 
Council review its policies regarding the ice cream vans trading adjacent to schools in 
the Borough;

2.10 The Public Health Service be recommended to continue to work with colleagues within 
Oldham Council’s Public Health Service to deliver oral health improvement packs on 
Post-natal wards at Oldham Hospital via midwives in the Maternity Unit, bearing in 
mind that Oldham and North Manchester General Hospital, now provide maternity 
facilities for this  Borough’s women;

2.11 The Study Group fully acknowledges the long term benefits of fluoridation of the 
domestic water supply which would be wide ranging and long lasting, and urges the 
cabinet and the Council to concur and to push for both a North West and a Greater 
Manchester wide approach in this regard.   

 

3. Background information

3.1 On 23rd September 2015, the Health, Schools and Care Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee established a Scrutiny Study Group to attempt to gain an understanding of 
the prevalence and severity of dental decay amongst the Borough’s residents, 
especially amongst five year old children and to examine recommended actions for 
inclusion in the local Oral Health Improvement Strategy 2016 - 2020 to rectify the 
current situation. The Study was therefore closely linked to the development of the 
Borough’s Oral Health Improvement Strategy and was concerned with improving 
health outcomes for service users in the Rochdale Borough which should improve 
healthy life and wellbeing outcomes. As a consequence, this directly linked into the 
‘People’, ‘Place’ and ‘Prosperity’ corporate priorities of the Council. Much of the work 
will be absorbed into the Council’s Obesity Action Plan which is co-ordinated by the 
Public Health Directorate and has an elected member input via the Portfolio Holder for 
Public health and Wellbeing.

Page 139



3.2       The Study Group’s membership comprised Councillors Sullivan (Chair), Ali Ahmed, 
Sultan Ali, Cecile Biant, O’Neill and Zaheer. 

3.3 The Study Group was concerned to work collaboratively with a range of officers and 
health professionals to raise awareness and understanding of evidence based Oral 
Health Improvement recommendations by Greater Manchester Public Health England 
and Public Health England. The Study Group Members were asked to focus on good 
practice, evidence based provision and filling gaps in service and delivery, improving 
the Oral Health of the residents across the Borough of Rochdale.  

3.4 The Study Group was also asked to review performance of the Oral Health 
Improvement Plan in relation to: reductions in decayed missing and filled teeth (dmft); 
the oral health engagement and training for the wider professional workforce; targeted 
community-based fluoride programs; supervised tooth brushing in targeted childhood 
settings; and healthy food and drink policies in childhood settings.

3.4 The Study Group examined established tooth brushing programmes that have had a 
beneficial effect starting via the community midwife and which continue until a child 
reaches the age of four and in some targeted areas, until the age of 7 years of age. In 
this regard the Study Group welcomed the Deputy Head Teacher of St. Mary’s Primary 
School, Balderstone, Rochdale to address Members on the teeth brushing programme 
that was in existence at her school. The teeth brushing programme proved to be a big 
success. All 30 children in the Year 6 Group had brushed their teeth immediately after 
lunch as a pilot project and the programme was subsequently rolled out to the school’s 
other year groups, so that the 207 pupils in the school were now engaged in the 
programme. It was found that the children themselves really enjoyed the experience 
and most parents were supportive too. The success of the pilot project had been rolled 
out for other schools to participate in including Belfield Primary School in Rochdale. 
Representatives of various schools across the Borough had since visited St. Mary’s to 
view the programme in action. In addition, as part of a health promotion scheme the 
school’s children participated in the ‘mile a day’ programme whereby children walk one 
mile a day to boost fitness and improve attitudes to and awareness of the importance 
of physical fitness and, in the case of St. Mary’s the ‘mile a day’ consisted of children 
walking 21 times around the perimeter of the school’s playground.  

3.5 In terms of receiving external speakers who could lend particular expertise, meetings 
have been attended by the following: Gill Davis (Public Health England – who has 
attended Council meetings in the past relating to oral health presentations), Dr Khalid 
Mushtaq – a locally based dental practitioner who is the lead for the Local Dental 
Committee and Andrew Forest of the Big Life Group - which had been commissioned 
to provide the oral health services and training in the Borough.

3.6 The Study Group met on eight occasions in total and considered numerous issues and 
evidence, on which the Members have been fully engaged.

3.7 The following issues have so far been dealt with by the Study Group:

a. Water fluoridation;
b. Borough Locality Plan (a ‘quick win’ for the Study group was the addition of oral 

health care in the Locality Plan as a direct result of Member’s intervention);
c. Greater Manchester Devolution Proposals (insofar as it affects health and social 

care) including the fluoridation of domestic water supplies;
d. Oral Health programmes for Looked After Children;
e. Healthy eating;
f. Tooth brushing – family fluoride toothpaste schemes;

Page 140



g. Buddy Scheme – care pathway between Primary Schools and Dental 
Practitioners; and

h. The location of fast food outlets close to Primary Schools;
i. The location of ice cream vans close to schools;
j. Obesity and Oral Health Delivery Plan 2016 – 2018.

3.8 The Chair of the Study Group, Councillor Sullivan, has attended meetings of the 
Greater Manchester Public Health England Collaborative Commissioning Oral Health 
Improvement Group, a move that was welcomed as it makes Rochdale the first 
Greater Manchester Authority to have Member level representation on this body and in 
this regard, it was hoped that other local authorities would send elected 
representatives in future.

3.9 The following issues were considered by the Study Group:

a. Looked After Children - including the engagement with providers and the 
provision of specialised training sessions for care workers and social care staff in 
collaboration with ‘Living Well’.

b. Policy - the Study Group undertook an examination of the Oral Health 
Improvement Strategy 2016 -2020 and recommended its formal approval and 
adoption by the Council. 

 
c. Tooth Brushing in Schools – a programme was already established and was 

being implemented on behalf of the Council by ‘Living Well’. In 2015/16, it was 
reported that there has been an increase of 20% in participants of the scheme. 
The Big Life Group, in consultation with the Council’s Public Health Directorate 
and Healthy Schools Team were currently compiling data and looking for ways to 
further increase delivery across targeted areas - an example being the ‘Healthy 
Schools’ programme which the Council is working closely with St Marys Primary 
School, Balderstone, Rochdale  included an action plan with regard to enhanced 
status. This example was a direct result of work identified via the Study Group. 
The Council is also working on a baseline questionnaire and gathering evidence 
of learning with School Oral Health Improvement schemes and Healthy Schools, 
and is delivering appropriate training on the ‘Dental Buddy Resource Box’, there 
is also engagement with the promotion of a poster competition for ‘smile week’ 
and the use of ‘Change 4 Life sugar swap tools’.  The Council’s Oral Health 
Improvement Officer attended the ‘Dragons Den’ Public Health England 
Research seminars, to look at considerations in regard to the study of the 
children on the schemes as per previous requests from Councillors.

d. Buddy Scheme – the aim of this initiative was to link local dentists with nearby 
schools thereby creating visible pathways between the schools and a dentist. 
The longer term aims of the scheme are to help the child to create confidence 
around dental surgery visits, to offer help/assistance to parents and carers via 
specialised preventative advice and fluoride varnish applications in the dental 
practice and promote tooth brushing. In this regard, the work of Dr Khalid 
Mushtaq a local lead on the information for the possibility of establishing a Buddy 
Scheme was invaluable and welcomed. It was noted that Public Health England, 
already had in place two pilot projects in Greater Manchester in Oldham and 
Bolton Boroughs. The Oral Health Officer had attended a meeting with service 
commissioners and Public Health England in regard to the scheme in Oldham 
and the possibility of a joint venture in the future. It should be noted, that there 
were concerns from Public Health England that a locally based scheme may 
impinge on wider work that Public Health England were already carrying out and 

Page 141



advised that Rochdale wait for the outcome of their pilot projects in Oldham and 
Bolton. 

e. Ice Cream Vans/Takeaways – there were issues around ice cream vans being 
parked outside schools (sometimes on school premises) and in this regard, it is 
linked to issues that members have already considered in relation to fast food 
outlets/takeaways. Rochdale Borough Council have regulations in place, that 
prohibit planning consent for fast food outlets/takeaways within a 400 metre 
radius of secondary schools and the Study Group is currently examining, if this 
can be extended to primary schools. Officers in the Public Health Directorate are 
leading on this work for the planning regulations to be extended to those primary 
schools that may be influenced by restricted area around secondary schools. 
Further work is ongoing that supports Public Health and Healthy Schools on 
obesity figures and also maps for ‘catchment’ areas. 

f. At the Study Group’s meeting in September the Group received a presentation 
from the Council’s licensing manager, who addressed Members about licensing 
issues in particular about issues appertaining to ice cream vans that were 
parking for trade close to the entrance to schools. The licensing team had 
contacted schools across the Borough about the operation of ice cream vendors 
and a number had responded to say that such vendors did indeed operate 
adjacent to their schools (such as Woodlands, Alkrington, Meanwood and All 
Soul’s primary schools). It was reported that there was a particular problem 
relating to ice cream vendors operating in the area adjacent to Middleton 
Technology (High) School. Members requested that, if at all possible, a policy be 
formulated regarding the operation of ice cream vendors adjacent to school 
premises. There currently exists a restricted sales zone, regarding the operation 
of ice cream vans in the Borough’s town centre and Hollingworth Lake in 
Littleborough. Members did though note the Council’s current policy with regard 
to fast food outlets not being permitted to operate within a 400 metre radius of a 
secondary school in the Borough. The Study Group noted that a report to the 
Council’s Planning and Licensing Committee would be presented in due course 
regarding this matter.

g. Water Fluoridation – the Study Group on numerous occasions discussed the 
issue of adding fluoride to the domestic water supply, a situation that currently 
appertains in the West Midlands region. However there was a realisation that this 
was something beyond the reach of the Study Group in itself and perhaps even 
the Council. Various studies commissioned over a number of year consistently 
find lower rates of tooth decay among children who live in areas where the 
domestic water supply is fluoridated rather than those children from non-
fluoridated areas. Such an initiative would require consultations with both the 
general public and neighbouring authorities. A community water fluoridation 
toolkit for local authorities has been published to help and inform local 
authorities. Water fluoridation is expressly permitted in legislation by Parliament, 
with decisions made at a local level. The Health and Social Care Act 2012, by 
amending the Water Industry Act 1991, returned responsibility for those 
decisions to local authorities with Public Health responsibilities and whilst the 
long term benefits would be wide ranging and long lasting, the short term 
financial outlay may be too prohibitive.   

h. Maternity Interventions –Public Health is working closely with colleagues in 
Oldham Council’s Public Health to deliver oral health improvement packs on 
post-natal wards at Oldham Hospital via midwives in the Maternity Unit, bearing 
in mind that Oldham and North Manchester General Hospital now provides 
maternity facilities for the Rochdale Borough’s women. In 2014, there were (for 

Page 142



Rochdale residents), 1928 live births at Royal Oldham Hospital out of 2845 in 
total (67.8%).

i. Engagement with LDC and Dental Practitioners - Dr Mushtaq, the Chair of the 
LDC, is engaging with the study group and is the lead General Dental 
Practitioner for the Buddy scheme. Dr Mushtaq, is currently working and advising 
on engagement with local dental practitioners. 

j. The draft Obesity and Oral Health Delivery Plan 2016 – 2018 was considered by 
Members. It was commented that nationally the levels of obesity (in children and 
adults) was higher in areas that experienced high levels of deprivation whereas 
in Rochdale the obesity levels (for children and adults) were high across all parts 
of the Borough, including the more affluent and less socially deprived areas. The 
figures though did not highlight the wide variation by geographical areas of the 
Borough or the differences between the Borough’s various ethnic and minority 
groups

4. Alternatives considered

4.1 The Study Group considered a range of alternatives before arriving at their 
recommendations above (please see the minutes of the various meetings of the Study 
Group, attached at the appendices, for more information).

5. Financial Implications

5.1 None

6. Legal Implications

6.1 None

7. Corporate Priorities

7.1 The Study directly impacts on the ‘People’, ‘Place’ and ‘Prosperity’ corporate priorities 
of the Council and Members gave appropriate regard to these priorities during their 
considerations.

8. Equalities Impacts - there are no significant workforce equality issues or 
equality/community issues arising from this report.

Page 143



 

 
1 

                                                 
  

Minutes of the Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) Governing Body 

 

FORMAL 

Date and time 
of Meeting: 

Friday 16th December 2016 
10:40 hrs to 11:20 hrs 

Venue: Hollingworth, Number One Riverside 

 

Present: Dr Chris Duffy  
Mr Simon Wootton 
Cllr J Emsley 
Mrs Sam Evans 
Andrea Fallon  
Dr Lynn Hampson 
 
Mr Andy Lowe 
 
Mrs Denise Dawson 
Mr Paul Rowen 
Dr Susan Savage 
 

Clinical Chair (Chair) 
Chief Officer 
Chair Health and Wellbeing Board RBC 
Chief Finance Officer 
Director of Public Health (from item 1.4 onwards) 
CCG Clinical Locality Governing Body member for 
Rochdale East 
Lay Member for Governance / Deputy Governing 
Body Chair 
Lay member for Patient & Public Engagement 
Lay Member for Integrated Risk  
Director of Quality and Safety / Executive Nurse  
 

In 
Attendance: 

Mrs Sandra Croasdale 
 
Helen Chapman 
 

Deputy Director of Operations / Governing Body 
Secretary 
Minute Taker 
 

Apologies: Dr Bodrul Alam 
 
Mrs Karen Hurley 
Kate Jones 
Mr Ian Mello 
Dr Vijay Tandle 
Dr Bob Wood 
 

CCG Clinical Locality Governing Body Member for 
Rochdale West 
Director of Operations and Engagement 
Healthwatch 
Director of Commissioning and Provider Management 
Secondary Care Clinician 
CCG Clinical Locality Governing Body Member for 
Heywood & Middleton 
 

 

AGENDA 
ITEM 

ITEM ACTION 

 

 Public Open Forum  
 

 
 
 
 

 
No members of public were in attendance.   
 
The following question was sent via email from Ms Jane Rickards: 
Will the CCG look at revising the Choose and Book form which neither 
allows you to choose nor book? 
There are two additional pages which are now irrelevant, eliminating 
them will help in saving money and stop confusing patients. 
 
HMR CCG Lay member for Patient and Public Engagement 
acknowledged the frustrations with the wording of the letter which can 
be misleading.  However, it was explained that this is a national 
Choose and Book letter, which cannot be changed locally.  Information 
has previously been fedback and will again be escalated to the 

Page 144

Agenda Item 8



 

 
2 

National Body to follow up.  
 

 

1 - GOVERNANCE 

 

 Apologies  
 

 
Apologies as noted as above.  
 

 

16/12/16/1.1 Committee Business  
 

 
1.1.1   The Governing Body were informed of the resignation of Dr B 

Wood.  The Chair expressed his personal thanks and that of 
HMR CCG for Dr Wood’s support over the past 4 years within 
the CCG and previously HMR Primary Care Trust.  
  

1.1.2    This will be the last meeting for the current Governing Body 
Secretary.  The Chair thanked the Governing Body Secretary 
for all her help and input to date.  An interim Governing Body 
Secretary will be in place from Monday 19 December 2016 
and members will be updated within the Chief Officers report.   

 
1.1.3   The Governing Body agreed to note the verbal updates 

provided. 
 

 

16/12/16/1.2 
 

Declarations and Register of Interests  
 
 
 

 
1.2.1   The Chair requested any declarations of interest. No 

declarations were made.  
 

 

16/12/16/1.3 Minutes of the CCG Governing Body Meeting held on 18th 
November 2016 

 
 
  

1.3.1 The minutes of the meeting held on Friday 18th November 2016, 
were agreed as a true and accurate record with the following 
amendments noted: 

 
1.3.2 1.5.3 If there is an incident the defibrillator will always be 

brought down…. 
 
1.3.3 3.1.2 Work is ongoing by the Safeguarding Team to work with 

Care Homes.  New paragraph 
 
1.3.4 3.1.3 HMR CCG Designated Nurse and team are currently 

providing training to GP Practices and working with all 
practices to identify areas where improvements can be made. 
 

1.3.5 5.4.3 Following a request by the Health, School and Care 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee a session is being arrange 
arranged on suicide prevention.  

 

 

Page 145



 

 
3 

 

16/12/16/1.4 Matters Arising / Action Log / Use of Chairs Actions  
 
 

 
1.4.1   The action log was reviewed and updated. 
 
1.4.2    No Chairs Actions have taken place since the last meeting on 

18th November 2016. 
 

 

16/12/16/1.5 Chair’s Report  
 
 
 
 
 
 

CD 
 

 
1.5.1     A verbal update was provided on meetings and activity since 

18 November 2016. 
 

1.5.2    NHS England assurance meeting has taken place, which was 
an interesting meeting.  No formal response has been 
received to date. Governing Body members will be updated in 
due course.   
 

1.5.3     A meeting was attended with RBC and HMR CCG ahead of 
the Better Care Fund Quarter 2 submission.    
 

1.5.4    The Joint Director for Commissioning recruitment has taken 
place.  This was an interesting and thorough process.  This 
has resulted in the ICB requesting to complete Hogan 
assessment.   
 

1.5.5    Recruitment for Clinical Board members is taking place and 
the closing date is today.  Interviews are scheduled for next 
week following confirmation of HR support.   
 

1.5.6    Attendance at  Rochdale Locality Engagement Group meeting 
which was the last meeting for the Chair Dr Musharraf 
Hussain.  Dr Hussain is retiring both as Chair of LEG and as a 
GP within the borough.  Dr Hussain was wished well by HMR 
CCG and member practices.  Discussion took place in relation 
to workforce planning for GP’s.      
 

1.5.7     A meeting has taken place with Alistair Burns, (NHS England) 
Dementia lead.  Discussion took place in relation to targets 
and how these are based.  These were confirmed as national 
targets for each practice.  HMR CCG’s expected prevalence is 
twice that of Manchester.   
 

1.5.8    MCP meeting was attended on Wednesday evening, which 
was good to see practices and partners driving forward the 
Locality Care Organisation. Some questions were raised 
relating to procurement and national directives.   
 

1.5.9    The Governing Body agreed to note the verbal update 
provided.  

 

 

16/12/16/1.6 Chief Officer’s Report  
 
 
 
 
 

 
1.6.1    In addition to the report, a verbal update was provided in 

relation to interim arrangements to support the Locality Plan.   
 

1.6.2   Sandra Croasdale, HMR CCG Deputy Director of Operations Page 146



 

 
4 

and Governing Body Secretary will take on the interim role of 
Programme Director for the Locality Plan.  The Administration 
Team Manager, Helen Chapman will take on the interim role 
of Governing Body Secretary and lead on Corporate 
Governance.  The Senior Administrator, Stacey Brogan will 
take on the interim role of Administration Team Manager.   
 

1.6.3    The Joint Director of Commissioning post successful applicant 
will be announced today by HMR CCG and RBC.   
 

1.6.4    North Manchester site difficulties continue to be problematic.  
North Manchester CCG and Council want to re develop the 
site.  A task and finish group to be implemented and HMR 
CCG have been asked for a clinical representative to join this 
group.  Ideally a Middleton clinician is to be identified to assist 
with potential new models, as they would have a greater 
understanding of the population within Middleton who will be 
affected by future proposals.  HMRCCG Chair will consider 
how this role links in with clinical roles and LEG 
representation.   
 

1.6.5    The Governing Body agreed to note the content of the 
report and verbal updates provided.   

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CD 
 

 

2 - ITEMS FOR DECISION  

 

16/12/16/2.1 Emergency Preparedness, Resilience and Response Assurance  
 
 

Declaration of Interest: No 

 
2.1.1   An update was provided by the Chief Officer.  HMR CCG has a 

different number of standards which they are measured against 
compared to  Acute Providers.  

  
2.1.2  Staff involved in completion of the EPRR were congratulated on 

their input and work.   
 

2.1.3  Assurance relating to PCFT Amber ratings will be followed up 
by Health Economy Resilience Group (HERG).  

 

2.1.4   The Governing Body agreed to note the outcome of the 
core standards assurance process, self-assessment and 
compliance statement as detailed in the report   

 

 

3 - ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION 

 

16/12/16/3.1 Finance Report  
 
 

Declaration of Interest: No 

 
3.1.1   An overview of the report was provided.  HMR CCG is on track 

for this year and the finance team are exploring the use of non-
recurrent funds. 
 

3.1.2   Risks around next year’s financial plan were highlighted.  
Contract negotiations are ongoing with PAHT due to current 
gap and PAHT’s underlying financial deficit a conference call 

Page 147



 

 
5 

has been arranged with Steve Wilson, Director of Finance from 
GM Health and Social Care Partnership to take place next 
week.   
 

3.1.3    Nationally a number of CCG’s have responded to the new tariff 
proposals which is supposed to be cost neutral nationally.  
However, GM CCG’s have a significant pressure when 
comparing estimated impact versus received allocations.   
 

3.1.4   Contract negotiations are ongoing and very challenging.  
Arbitration is not anticipated, contracts require sign off by 23 
December 2016.  
 

3.1.5   PCFT issues were highlighted.  HMR CCG are confident they 
can get to a point of sign off once Executive to Executive 
discussions take place and PCFT respond to CCG proposal.    
 

3.1.6   The Governing Body agreed to note the content of the 
report and verbal update provided.  
 

 
 

16/12/16/3.2 Primary Care Commissioning Committee (PCCC)Summary 
Report 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SW 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CD 

Declaration of Interest: No 

 
3.2.1    An overview of the paper was provided.  APMS preferred 

bidder was approved at the meeting and has now gone 
through the 10 day standstill process. HMR CCG is scheduled 
to announce the APMS successful bidder next week.   
 

3.2.2    Outcome based commissioning was raised at the Heywood 
and Middleton LEG meeting on Tuesday which is an important 
change in relation to Local Care Organisation (LCO).  
Currently very few GP’s are involved in the PCCC sub 
committees, it is important that GP’s get involved and this was 
reiterated at LEG meetings on Tuesday.  

 
3.2.3    Feedback was provided following concerns raised in practices 

at Rochdale LEG re financial stability.   

 
3.2.4    HMR CCG to send appropriate communication to address the 

above concerns.     
 

3.2.5    The Governing Body agreed to note the content of the 
report and verbal update provided.  

 

 

4 - ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS 

 

16/12/16/4.1 Questions / exception items from reports provided for 
information only 

 
 
 
 

 

 
4.1.1    No other business was discussed.  

 
Part 1 Closed at 11.20hrs  

The Chair wished everyone a Merry Christmas and Happy New Year 
 Page 148



 

 
6 

11 am to 1 pm Strategy Session (this item was not minuted) 
 

DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING 

Friday 20th January 2017 
10:30am – 12:30pm 

Rochdale Town Hall 

 

Page 149



 

JOINT GMCA AND AGMA SCRUTINY POOL 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON FRIDAY 13 JANUARY 2017 
  AT MANCHESTER TOWN HALL 

PRESENT 

 Bolton Council Cllr Debbie Newall 

Bury MBC Cllr Roy Walker 
Cllr Stella Smith 

Manchester CC Cllr Ahmed Ali 

Oldham MBC  Cllr Colin McLaren 
Cllr Cheryl Brock 

Rochdale MBC Cllr Michael Holly 

Stockport MBC Cllr Yvonne Guariento 
Cllr Iain Roberts 
Cllr John McGahan 

Tameside MBC Cllr Gillian Peet 
Cllr John Bell 

 Trafford MBC Cllr Pam Dixon 
Cllr Michael Young 
Cllr Barry Brotherton 

Wigan MBC Cllr John O’Brien 

IN ATTENDANCE 

GMCA Cllr Cliff Morris 
Jim Taylor 

SALFORD CC Charlotte Ramsden 

GM H&SC PSHIP Lord Peter Smith 
Warren Heppolette 

GMIST Susan Ford 
Nicola Ward 

Page 150

Agenda Item 9



 

17/01  APOLOGIES 

Apologies were received from Cllr David Jolley (Salford), Cllr Kevin McKeon (Bolton), Cllr 
Neil Butterworth (Rochdale), Cllrs James Wilson and Zahra Alijah (Manchester) and Cllr 
Pam Stewart (Wigan). 

17/02 CHAIRS ANNOUNCEMENTS AND URGENT BUSINESS 

The Chair opened the meeting and welcomed all those present. 

17/03 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There were no declarations of interest in respect to any item on the agenda. 

17/04 MINUTES OF THE GMCA AND AGMA SCRUTINY POOL MEETING HELD ON 9 
DECEMBER 2016 

The Minutes of the GMCA and AGMA Scrutiny Pool meeting held on 9 December 2016 
were submitted for consideration. 

RESOLVED/- 

To approve the Minutes of the GMCA and AGMA Scrutiny Pool meeting held on 9 
December 2016. 

17/05 GMCA/AGMA SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME AND FORWARD PLAN 

Members received a report to review and amend the Work Programme for the Joint GMCA 
and AGMA Scrutiny Pool for 2016/17. 

Susan Ford, GMIST informed members that at their request officers were preparing a 
future scrutiny item on the current social housing status across Greater Manchester. 

Gemma Marsh, New Economy gave a verbal update on the work as a result of the 
recommendations made by the Employment and Skills Task and Finish Group in July 
2016, including – 

 Work commissioned through the European Social Fund (ESF) to provide advice 
and guidance to those young people who are not in education, employment or 
training (NEETS). 

 Targeted support to young people who are currently in school, but at risk of 
becoming NEET. 

 The introduction of a careers and enterprise scheme where schools have a 
coordinator to link businesses with the school and shape career advice.  The 
coordinator's role is also to work with the senior leadership team to build the 
capacity of young people as they reach employment age to ensure they have the 
desired skills for the GM labour market. 

Page 151



 Ongoing work with the voluntary sector to their role in providing grass roots 
schemes (through ESF funding) for local residents. 

 A pilot has been launched to support young people accessing work through travel 
passes for apprentices.  This further supports the work of the ‘bike to work’ scheme. 

 The introduction of an Employer Engagement Framework to understand the skills 
need of employers and how devolution to GM could further assist with ensuring 
there is provision to support the growth of particular skills sectors. 

Members were pleased to see good progress across all the recommendations of the Task 
and Finish Group but asked how the sustainability of the schemes will be secured 
following Brexit and the changes to European Funding. In addition, to know how the 
success of the new interventions would be measured. 

Officers reported that through the work with senior leadership within schools there has 
been a change of mind set towards careers programmes which includes dedicated 
resources to support these schemes.  It is anticipated that this local approach will help to 
ensure the sustainability of programmes in the future. Current ESF programmes are also 
having sustainability plans built in to ensure their continuation, the latest statement from 
the Treasury indicates that all current EU funding is to be honoured.  GM are continuing to 
canvass for future Government funds to ensure the continuation of schemes. 

With regards to measuring success, a framework to monitor and track the progress of 
individuals is being developed which would identify all the interventions which have 
supported the learner. 

A member questioned how companies are linked with particular schools and whether there 
was even coverage of the scheme across GM.  Officers agreed to provide a list of schools 
and businesses who are involved with the Careers and Enterprise Scheme, but reported 
that all areas have schools which are engaged with the scheme, the majority of which are 
identified as serving disadvantage areas. 

Members further asked whether local career schemes are linked effectively to the Careers 
and Enterprise Scheme.  It was reported that the schemes work together to increase their 
reach and share lessons learnt. 

A member commented that devolution to GM offers a perfect opportunity to design a 
curriculum offer which businesses can also help to shape.  Officers reinforced that the 
scale of the 2018 Government budget is not confirmed, however the post 19+ education 
budget devolution offers the first opportunity to shape the curriculum against the desired 
skill sets. 

RESOLVED/- 

1. To note items for the 2016/17 Scrutiny Work Programme.

2. To note the progress with Scrutiny’s Task and Finish work as set out in section 2 of the
report.

3. To provide a note to members detailing the schools and business partnerships created
through the Careers and Enterprise Scheme.

Page 152



17/06 GM REVIEW OF SERVICES FOR CHILDREN 

Councillor Cliff Morris, GMCA Portfolio Lead for Children’s Services introduced a report 
which provided an update on the GM Review of Services for Children which formed part of 
the Greater Manchester Devolution Agreement. 

Jim Taylor, Lead Chief Executive for Children’s Services explained to the Pool that despite 
a number of political changes, that the review was still progressing and was further 
evidenced through a number of significant policy initiatives all contributing to the Children 
and Young Peoples agenda.  However, the GMCA wished to continue to progress the 
review recommendations to ensure that GM remains ahead of future policy development. 

In October 2016 GM submitted an investment plan and business case which was accepted 
by the Department for Education (DfE) and would be next taken to Ministers for decision. 
This would ensure the levels of investment needed to implement the outcomes of the 
review over the next three years. 

Charlotte Ramsden, Director of Children’s Services at Salford Council (and GM Lead 
DCS) reported that there was strong coordination between all GM local authorities and 
progress had already been made with regards to the outcomes of the review.  One of the 
areas of particular success was youth justice, where GM had created one vision and one 
system to more effectively and efficiently work with young offenders.  There had been 
significant collaboration with colleagues from other organisations regarding the Health and 
Social Care Locality Plans which also offered real opportunities for improving services to 
children and young people. 

A member asked about how the GM authorities engage effectively with Academy Trusts 
and Multi Academy Trusts.  Officers reported there were good relationships with Academy 
Trusts across GM, and their data is included with data for each local authority.  The DfE 
have assured that GM would be consulted on any further Academy or Multi Academy 
Trusts as their creation would impact further local decisions such as the Spatial 
Framework.  It was further reported that GM had influenced DfE with regards to the 
integration of Academy Trust data and would continue to work in partnership with the 
Regional Schools Commissioner to oversee the education outcomes for all children in GM. 

Members further asked who has the power and authority to intervene if an Academy or 
Multi Academy School was failing.  Officers reported that the Board of Governors would be 
the first to intervene and the future role of the local authority in relation to standards is 
currently under development by DfE.  The Regional Schools Commissioner still retains 
ultimate responsibility. 

A member asked whether the opportunities to link social and economic benefits through 
the Greater Manchester Challenge were still being utilised.  It was reported that following 
the success of the Greater Manchester Challenge scheme, opportunities still remain to 
further challenge and support the parts of the system which are struggling. 

Members of the Pool questioned how the DfE’s plan to reform the GM Safeguarding 
Children’s Board would impact the work of the local authorities.  Officers commented that 
the local Safeguarding Children’s Boards have a key role in safeguarding children within 

Page 153



 

their local authority so they would retain their core business but there were some tasks 
which maybe more effectively done collectively at a GM level. 

A member asked whether the careers advice in GM was sufficient enough to give young 
people the building blocks needed to progress into the workplace, and if not, what GM 
were doing about it.  Officers reported that each school provides an individual level of 
careers advice and support, but nationally it is reported that there has been a squeeze on 
resources as a result of a crowded academic system.  The GM Education and 
Employability Board aims to share good practice, and develop links between schools and 
businesses but recognises that the broadening of the curriculum is the responsibility of all.   

Members further asked whether GM were concerned about the number of local authority 
children’s services being reported as inadequate.  The report references the national 
agenda which discusses what happens if a local authority falls into ‘inadequate’ and a new 
initiative which allows the intervention of the Secretary of State.  GM are building on their 
strong networks to reduce the risk of any of its local authorities falling into ‘inadequate’ 
status through peer support, and early intervention planning. 

Members raised concerns that the funding for the Schools Improvement Programme was 
now held by the DfE but that local authorities across the UK were falling into ‘inadequate’ 
status.  Officers reported that GM local authorities will have the opportunity through 
devolution to provide greater support one another and would continue to lobby for funding 
to support interventions.  Recent announcements have already confirmed some funding 
allocation, but the DfE are currently evaluating how this will impact GM. 

A member commented that the introduction of Regional Adoption Agencies was a 
significant positive step through GM devolution and that the creation of three hubs should 
be included within the outcomes of the Review of Children’s Services.  Officers agreed that 
the introduction of Regional Adoption Agencies would ensure a strong partnership 
approach across GM that would further be supported by a consistent singular court 
process. 

RESOLVED/- 

1. To note the progress made on the Greater Manchester Services for Children Review
including those areas of work where Greater Manchester had received no direct
funding from Central Government.

2. To note the process for finalising the funding ask of the Department for Education to
support the next phase of Review.

3. To note the immediate next steps for the Review.

17/07 GREATER MANCHESTER HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE PARTNERSHIP 
(GMHSCP): TAKING CHARGE – SIX MONTH PROGRESS REPORT 

Lord Peter Smith, GMCA Portfolio Lead for Health and Social Care introduced a report 
was which informed members of the progress in Greater Manchester since the Greater 
Manchester Health and Social Care Partnership (GMHSCP) took charge of their £6bn 
health and social care budget, and the £450m Transformation Fund, in April 2016.  He 

Page 154



 

reminded members that the GMHSCP included the engagement of 37 local health and 
social care providers plus NHS England.  Their collaboration had been successful, but 
there were still challenges around reducing the gap in life chances across communities in 
GM.  The Transformation Fund provided a unique opportunity to improve the system 
through devolved decision making and funding to support implementation.  

Warren Heppolette, Executive Lead for Strategy System and Development at the Greater 
Manchester Health and Social Care Partnership took members through a short 
presentation which provided an update on the Greater Manchester ‘Taking Charge’ Plan.  
This document provides a shared strategy for health and social care across GM, and the 
six month review specifically highlighted the achievements of the GMHSCP, performance 
against the main strategic objectives and the current challenges faced by health and social 
care providers.  

A member asked why the surplus (showed in page 11 of the report) was not being used to 
alleviate other problems in the NHS budget.  It was reported that the financial picture was 
complicated, but that any surplus in the system equates to a deficit in another part of the 
system and was not actually true surplus.  There is an ongoing conversation amongst 
commissioners and providers as to how to calculate an accurate GM balance. 

Members praised the work of the Partnership and commented that the integration of health 
and social care was excellent, however concerns were raised about the impact of winter 
pressures on health services and the increase of waiting times etc.  The GMHSCP can 
attribute the rising figures of a&e waiting times and reduced bed capacities to a number of 
factors including; patients with complex issues who are not able to be discharged, a 
general increase in admissions to a&e, and a lack of specialist staff across the UK.  The 
Partnership further recognise that the delayed discharge figures are not satisfactory and 
the variation across GM needs to be addressed.  Through the Partnership, a recognition 
that all issues have a knock-on effect to other providers and patient outcomes has helped 
to move to a ‘whole system’ approach. 

A member reported that at another meeting it was reported that the North West 
Ambulance Service target for hand over to hospitals was not being met mainly through the 
lack of hospital resources to accept a patient upon arrival.  It was felt that this was just one 
example of the issues currently being faced by emergency care and that the GMHSCP 
needed to ensure this was a priority for improvements.  It was reported that the 
Partnership recognise that NWAS hand over targets are part of a systemic process which 
has further difficulties due to its complex set-up and accountability.  However, members of 
the Partnership are aware of the concerns and remain committed to working together, to 
sharing their difficulties and learning from one another. 

A member of the Pool asked whether bereavement services were within the scope of the 
GMHSCP as often associated issues can lead to further health and social care concerns.  
Officers reported that nothing was out of scope for the Partnership and they would be 
encouraging and supporting all partner organisations to tackle the mental health priorities 
through all workstreams.  The member further asked whether bullying was also considered 
within the Mental Health Strategy.  Again it was recognised the wider impact of bullying on 
mental health and officers informed the Pool that schools had been offered training around 
the ‘thrive’ model through the Children’s Mental Health Board. 

Page 155



 

A member reported that locally there have been criticisms about the gap between the 
vision and the reality of health services especially in relation to the provision of primary 
care services.  The Partnership recognise that this is a real issue and that funding will not 
be the only answer.  All public services need to re-think what the NHS means for people in 
the 21st century as currently 40% of people who visit their GP have wider social issues that 
need non-medical support.  In tackling these root cause issues the demand on GP 
services and hospitals would be dramatically reduced. 

Members were grateful that the report offered a baseline for health and social care issues 
in GM so that all partners were aware of where we currently are, and where we want to be.  
However, there was some concern that through local commissioning there was variation 
across CCG’s as to what services were provided for local residents.  It was reported that 
the Partnership are working to ensure a balance between local need and a GM standard of 
services to ensure that people have access to the healthcare they need irrespective of 
where they live. 

A member asked whether the devolved powers would give scope for GM to implement 
some of the ICT enablers.  It was reported that there remains a number of issues in 
relation to paper records and data sharing across-organisations however GM devolution 
has created a single GM fund for digital transformation with Salford FT taking the lead.  
Rochdale have also attracted a private investor to support the GM health and social care 
system through their partnership with Google to support digital sharing. 

Members asked how the process for approving applications to the Transformation Fund 
was determined to ensure its transparency.  Officers reported that all applications are 
supported by the GM Health and Social Care Partnership and approved at the Partnership 
meetings. 

A member asked whether neurological conditions and asthma were seen as priorities for 
the ‘Taking Charge’ plan.  It was reported that they were not within the first wave but work 
was already underway in relation to neurological conditions and asthma would be 
considered as part of the discussions on health outcomes. 

RESOLVED/- 

1. To note the report.

2. To share the report with relevant groups and stakeholders in their own localities.

17/08 SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS 2016/2017 

10 February 2017 
10 March 2017 
7 April 2017  

All meetings would be held 1:00pm - 3:00pm at Manchester Town Hall unless otherwise 
advertised. 

CHAIR 

Page 156


	Agenda
	1 Declarations of Interest
	Summary OF interests

	2 Minutes
	3 Health, Schools and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee - Work Programme 2016/17
	WP2

	4 Directorate Plans 2016-17 Quarter 3 Performance Update
	Append. 1 for Directorate Plans 2016-17 Quarter 3 Performance Update
	Append. 2 for Directorate Plans 2016-17 Quarter 3 Performance Update
	Append. 3 for Directorate Plans 2016-17 Quarter 3 Performance Update

	5 Rochdale BSF Project Co 1 - Hollingworth Academy & Project Co 2 - Wardle Academy and Falinge Park High Schools PFI - Annual Service Reports 2015-16
	BSF Report App1
	BSF Report App 2
	BSF Report App 3

	6 Rochdale Grouped Schools PFI - Annual Service Report 2015/16
	Append. 1 for Rochdale Grouped Schools PFI - Annual Service Report 2015-16

	7 Oral Health Improvement Strategy Study Group
	8 Clinical Commissioning Group
	9 GMCA/AGMA Scrutiny Pool

